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CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. This Budget and Finance Committee meeting will please come to
order. I'd like to welcome our Committee Vice-Chair, Riki Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. And our Council Chair, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And Member Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair. Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: And Bob Carroll is excused and I, and as well as Don Guzman. This morning, we
have our full Staff here with Yvette Bouthillier, our Secretary, and Committee Analysts,
Jordan Molina, Michele Yoshimura, and Chancy Hopper. And we have again, Jeff Ueoka,
from Corp. Counsel; Sandy Baz, our Budget Director; and Fire Chief, Jeff Murray. Good
morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, may I take a moment of personal privilege with
your permission?
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I wore this jacket today for a specific reason. Today marks the
one year anniversary of a horrific event that occurred in Boston with the bombing of the
Boston Marathon. Today, one year later, this country, Boston, and this State are stronger
than ever and as resilient as ever, and have vowed not to end and not to stop what we do each
and every day. This tragedy had a very personal, a very personal connection for myself and
maybe some other people in this room, because my son, my daughter-in-law, my
grandchildren were there in Boston the day of the attack. They were fortunate they were able
to get out that afternoon, but it was not something that was easy and something I've long
remembered, but I want to take a moment to remember the three people, or actually four,
with the police officer that was killed and the many more that were injured that are scarred
both emotionally and physically for the rest of their lives, but I will say in my subsequent
visits to Boston and the people that live there, they're Boston strong, they're Boston strong,
and I think that sure shows what the United States and all of us here in this County and this
State are made of. So with your permission, Mr. Chair, if we could have just a moment to
reflect whenever way to honor those who have passed and those who were injured, but more
importantly, all those who came together to help, and there in front of us today just so
happens to be our Fire Department, who was one of the first up, out there, firefighters, who
were at the course, who were out there, along with the police, EMTs, and everybody else
doing their share to protect and help those who had been injured. If we can take a moment to
thank them, to pray for those families that live with the loss, that live with the tragedy each
and every day, with your permission, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Permission granted. Thank you for your thoughts. We'll have a moment of
silence.
. . . (Moment of silence)..
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you again, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me that.
CHAIR WHITE: No problem, happy to do so. Okay. Members, this morning we have testifiers
here in the Chambers and we'll go through a number of testifiers here in the Chambers and
then go check in with our District Offices. So without objection, we'll start public testimony.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR WHITE: Our first testifier this morning is Terryl Vend. And Terryl will be followed by
Teya Penniman.
MS. VENCL: Aloha, Mr. Chairman and Council members. My name is Terryl Vencl. I'm the
executive director of the Maui Visitors Bureau, and I'm sort of. . .I thought I was gonna give
you a break from some of the testimony on Thursday so I'm trying to do it early. So I'm
kind of out of the natural order possibly. I'm here to support the request in the Mayor's
budget for MVB for 3.7 million. I have been explaining since 19. . .mid-2013, that we have
foreseen some softness coming in our arrivals and in our airlift. As you probably have
realized with latest numbers, it's now here. The last several months, we have seen decreases
in arrivals and it's now hitting our visitor expenditures. Our airlift has fallen in the U.S.
mainland since January, just this year, by 1.8 percent or about 6,000 seats. In Canada, it has
fallen by 2.3 percent, decreasing seats by approximately 2,000 seats. Cruise is also down,
13.8 percent or 8,000 passengers. So there is some real softness happening to us right now. I
believe that there are four main reasons for some of this weakening. First, of course, is I
believe the U.S. economy has plateaued. It's no longer growing as it was maybe for the last
couple years. The high cost of vacation, fuel costs, discretionary spending tightens as people
are now in the U.S. paying those polar vortex weather bills that they had to pay. The
currency exchanges are all over the board, and we're seeing different things happening in
different countries, thereby making sure that we will need to stay everywhere we can stay in
order to get the best of what is out there. The fourth. . .the third thing is competition,
Mexico, California, Florida, Caribbean, Phuket, Bali, Maldives, they're all big competitors
for the kind of vacation that we offer here or at least they think we offer here. Finally, the
lack of customs and immigration at our airport is a barrier for us, particularly, when we
continue to look at other countries. It's a long-term fix, it's not anything we can do right
now, but it should be on the table and the issue is the ease of travel for the travelling
customer. As we climbed out of the recession, after losing ATA and Aloha Airlines, we
went on the road with a very determined fashion driven by data from our, to our major
market areas. We were successful in creating demand in airlines. We're willing to put on a
lot of seats to fill the void created by those failed airlines. Now we face a stabilization of our
economy in the U.S. and growing has all but stopped. Thanks to Maui County's vision and
funding, our visitor industry came back in force over the last three years carrying double digit
increases often. Having said that, none of it is in real dollars, we're not back to where we
should be with regard to how that transfers with regard to GDP and other things in our
economy. Costs are higher, competition is fierce, and we must stay active to remain top of
mind for potential visitors. We know that being in front of wholesalers, travel agents, and
the media gives us a great return on the dollar.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MS. VENCL: We need to continue doing that. We are also adding to our plan, an island, heavier
island specialist program, where we bring them here because we know when they touch, feel,
and smell that they're sold on what it is that we have.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Vend, you'll have to provide a concluding sentence, because we have your
written testimony.
MS. VENCL: Okay. Certainly.
CHAIR WHITE: We certainly appreciate it.
MS. VENCL: Certainly. I'd just like to also say that we are the visitor voice in emergencies as
well, things that sometimes goes unnoticed around our area. We are the voice to get the
communication out for visitors and we are the guys who help visitors in need in addition to
the marketing. And we feel very responsible.. .
CHAIR WHITE: That's way more than an additional sentence.
MS. VENCL: Is that it? Are you kicking me out?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm.. .
MS. VENCL: Okay. All right. Certainly we appreciate all that you have done and ask for your
continued support, mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions for the testifier? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, real quickly. Thank you, TeiTyl, your written testimony
gives us a lot of feedback and understanding, you know, what's going on presently. Do you
feel, first and foremost, competition, you have. . .and I've seen some competition where they
put these beautiful pictures almost like Hawaii, but it's for Cancun and other places. Do you
feel that is, has hurt us in that respect, because you thinking you going somewhere, when you
end up buying something, you going somewhere else?
MS. VENCL: Well, I believe what happens there is that it, you know, oftentimes people see palm
trees and they think that it is Hawaii but palm trees are everywhere, you know, I mean, in a
lot places, they're not everywhere, and I think that sometimes yes. They do think that they're
getting what they believe to be a Hawaii vacation when they see those types of things. What
happens is sometimes people will say to me, for particularly from the east coast who take off
to the Caribbean because it's much closer, easy access, et cetera, they finally come here and
they say, I thought you were like the Caribbean. First of all, the weather isn't even like the
Caribbean, but because of those types of images, they do believe that it is the same.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you, and thank you for all your efforts. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thanks, Ms. Vencl, for being here.
When you say we're down 6,000 airlift, what's your. . .are 6,000 people less coming or is
there 6,000 less seats available?
MS. VENCL: It's seats, it's less seats available. The, you know, there is no shortness of demand,
it's about getting 'em here and getting 'em here and they want to be here as in direct most of
the time if they can do that, but it is a loss of seats and typically it comes from an area. For
example, some of this is out of our secondary cities, very, very important to us in California
and on the West Coast because they're our repeat visitor. We can count on them continuing
to come back, and so. . .and then if you look at the ease of travel, some of those folks don't
want to go into the larger hubs, they'd rather be in an Orange County or something in order
to make life much easier for them.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So in that case, is that more. . .you're saying that the seats that we
have are filled in our RevPAR is pretty high at this point, isn't it?
MS. VENCL: Well, I don't have the load factor numbers in front of me today, but I do know that
the reason for moving the inventory is to create and continue to gain the higher yield.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So how much work do you guys do with the airlines to convince
them to do direct flights here?
MS. VENCL: Our job is to create the demand and awareness. The HTA and the HVCB both work
directly with the airlines to gain those seats and keep those seats, but you can't keep the seats
unless the demand is there and people to fill them and that's our job.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Vencl, the 6,000 seats, is that per week or per month? Is it. . .it's not 6,000
per year.
MS. VENCL: It's a loss of those many seats since January. That's, so January, February, March.
CHAIR WHITE: But is it per week? Because I'm taking your 1.8 percent -MS. VENCL: Yeah.
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CHAIR WHITE: --that means our total is 333,000 seats and we need a whole lot more than that to
get 2 million people here.
MS. VENCL: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So it must be per month.
MS. VENCL: You know, I would need to check that, because I don't. . .actually I don't think the
schedule I looked at says it's a week or a month.
CHAIR WHITE: But it is a certain flight schedule, I think -MS. VENCL: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --either a week -MS. VENCL: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --or a month, so I don't want people getting the idea that all we're losing is
possibly whatever visitors would fit in 6,000 seats 'cause that's a lot larger number.
MS. VENCL: Yeah, it's more. Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? The Chair will just share that back when we formed
the HTA, it was because. . .and one of the examples we used, back then the HVCB was
getting somewhere in the neighborhood of $20 million in funding. One of the reasons that
we felt we needed to establish the HTA was we were being outspent significantly by places
like Puerto Rico. My recollections back then, Puerto Rico spent $60 million. So I assume
that Puerto Rico was in the same category as the State of Hawaii, but I since learned that
Puerto Rico has less rooms than Maui. They have about 16,000 rooms compared to our
21,000. So I went back and looked up their current budget and their budget for tourism
marketing is $47 million. Their buy for just advertising and media expense is $27 million, so
I checked with my Staff and they were at, they attended a show in New York, a consumer
show in New York. The area occupied by Puerto Rico was twice the size of the area
occupied by Hawaii. So, yeah, we're getting significantly outspent and to some degree we're
feeling it now. We're still a very attractive destination, we're still considered the best island
destination in the world, but we have to be there showing that we can provide the value for
what it cost to fly all the way here, because it's a lot shorter trip to the Caribbean and to
Mexico and significantly less expensive, well, significantly less expensive for your on the
ground expenses in Mexico, and Caribbean is about the same or Puerto Rico is about the
same as, it's close to what Maui charges. So. . .just. . .that was my personal privilege for the
day.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very good, sir.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Vend. And our next testifier is Teya Penniman.
MS. PENNIMAN: Good morning, Chair White, Council Chair Baisa, and Council members. I am
Teya Penniman, manager of the Maui Invasive Species Committee. My pleasure to be here
this morning, and I'll just follow up on the last testifier. I know you all know that one of the
reasons, key reasons people come to Hawaii and Maui is because of our natural environment,
and I'm testifying on behalf of . .testifying about the support that County Council has
continued to give over the years for which we're very grateful. I know. . .and later this
morning, you'll be hearing about the Department of Water Supply budget. There is a
specific line item in there for Miconia containment, which has traditionally helped to support
Maui Invasive Species Committee's work on Miconia as well as other invasive plant species
in our watersheds. Also in that, in the budget is support for the work of other watershed
partnerships and like to continue to urge you to keep the funding going for that very
important work for not only for MISC but also for the watershed partnerships. Wanted to
note as I think I have in the past that we work across island wide. We're not really a
watershed partnership but we work in all of the watersheds and work on a very collaborative
and cooperative basis with the watershed partnerships. Our work is not overlapping, only it
is only in the sense that we work in some of the same areas, but we all have very different
kuleana that we take on to get the job done to protect our watersheds in perpetuity. Also just
wanted to take a moment to express our strong appreciation for the Department of Water
Supply, we know that managing grants is probably not what they think of in terms of doing
utility work and doing CIP's and keeping all of that work going, but we've been extremely
grateful for the support from the leadership and from the staff at Department of Water
Supply. So really, really appreciate that work. As you know, we do more than just work on
invasive plants, so our work on species like coqui frogs and little fire ants is largely funded
through the Office of Economic Development. I'm not specifically testifying about that this
morning, but if you have questions about any of those aspects, I'd be happy to answer them.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Penniman. Members, questions of the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Lisa Paulson. And Lisa will be followed by Chris Brosius.
MS. PAULSON: Good morning, Chair, members of the Committee. My name is Lisa Paulson,
executive director of the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association, the legislative arm of the
visitor industry. Our membership includes over 150 properties and allied business members
in Maui County, all of whom have an interest in the visitor industry. Collectively, MHLA
membership employs over 20,000 local residents and represents over 19,500 rooms. We are
the largest employer of residents on the island, directly employing approximately 40 percent
of all residents, indirectly the percent increases to 75 percent. On behalf of the Maui Hotel
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and Lodging Association, I respectfully request that proposed increases in landfill fees, water
rates, and real property taxes be thoroughly reviewed and discussed to see if we can look at
keeping the rates and fees at their current level or with smaller increases than proposed.
Today, I'm here to discuss proposed increases to the water rates. There is a misconception
that our hotels and resorts consume the majority of water on Maui and the fact is that less
than 10 percent of all water consumed on Maui is sold to the hotels, and I have a reference at
the end of my testimony so that you can see the verification on that data. Our properties are
financially motivated to conserve water as it, like all utilities, represent a significant expense
to their operations. All properties employ various methods of water conservation and are
always looking for addition ways to improve their conservation practices. I've added an
attachment to this testimony listing the combined effort of some of my properties to conserve
their water use. This past Sunday, there was an article discussing MECO' s request to the
PUC for rate increases with a quote from Mayor Arakawa asking MECO to not seek any
further rate increases and until it is operating under a sustainable energy plan. I believe it's
reasonable for Maui County businesses to ask the same of the County. Carefully consider
any rate and fee increases until the County can become more self-sustainable. Our hotel
properties and visitor industry related businesses are constantly being held accountable by
their owners and shareholders to control their costs. The members of Maui Hotel and
Lodging Association are now asking the County to do the same. The cost of doing business
and the tax rates in Hawaii are increasingly making it more difficult to be competitive and for
businesses to be profitable. Continuously increasing rates and fees will only diminish our
properties ability to compete in a price sensitive resort destination market. We need -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. PAULSON: --to ensure the continued success of our industry for the County's economy to be
sustainable. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Paulson. Members, any questions for the testifier? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And good morning, thank you, Ms. Paulson,
for being here. My question is in regards to that sentence, the fact is that less than 10 percent
of all water consumed on Maui is sold to hotels, and then you have the asterisk footnote at
the last page and it says, you're saying 8.5 to 9 percent of the, from the Department of Water
Supply. My question is how much from private waters systems though? 'Cause it all comes
from the same aquifer and watershed and what have you.
MS. PAULSON: I don't have the table breakdown for the ag and private and hotel. I was looking
for that last night.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, but my question is as in hotel, I mean, you get all County
source. All hotels only use County source water.
MS. PAULSON: Correct. Some on the West Side do use R-1 for their irrigation.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Okay. And no private.
CHAIR WHITE: No. Just to be clear, all the hotels in Kaanapali and I believe Kapalua is on its
own. Kapalua has a private system and Kaanapali has a private system.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And they're not part of MHLA?
CHAIR WHITE: No, they are.
MS. PAULSON: They are.
CHAIR WHITE: They are.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So your question is well taken.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know what the mix of residential.
MS. PAULSON: Oh. Okay. Private uses, excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair, Ms. Paulson.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any other questions, Members? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was gonna jump on that one because I knew that was
absolutely incorrect, Lisa, you know, because West Maui, almost all of the hotels are on
private system and a good percentage of the residents are on private systems there also. You
know, South Maui is a little different dynamics, yeah, but we have a lot of private systems
throughout this County. So to say only 10 percent, I tend to have to agree with Ms. Cochran
that that's not really being fair, 'cause we do, you do use the water from our aquifers and
from our other systems. And so. . .and yes, thank you for using the R-1, but again a lot of it
was dictated many years ago that you guys would do that to be able to build those hotels and
timeshares out there in the West Side. So anyhow, just so that history is correct, that's all I
wanted to put on that one, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I'll add a little history too, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: Those private water systems were built by private funds in order so the hotels
could be built out there, and so anyway the. . .I think it's a valid question that Ms. Cochran
brought up and we'll have, make an inquiry into the private and see if we can get a sense of
what the total consumption is.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you very much, Ms. Paulson.
MS. PAULSON: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And Chris Brosius will be followed by Rob Hoonan and then we will go to our
District Offices.
MR. BROSIUS: Aloha, Chair White, Committee members. My name is Chris Brosius and I'm the
program manager for the West Maui Mountains Watershed Partnership. I'm here to thank
you for your support of Maui's watersheds and reinforce watershed protection funding,
which goes to West Maui, East Maui, Leeward Haleakala, East Molokai, and the Maui
Invasive Species Committee. Each of our programs have been identified as funding
recipients under the DWS budget this year, combined these funds make up a very critical
portion of our budgets and are used to leverage State, Federal, and private funds several
times over. Watershed protection is important because our water resources are finite and in
fact they have been decreasing despite the recent rains due to a 12 percent decline in rainfall
in recent decades overall. This is of great concern because our dependence on watersheds
has increased by the growth of our population and economy. Our work is aimed at
decreasing this problem by stabilizing the degradation of forested ecosystems, which gather,
filter, and release life giving water in these times of climatic stress. Our programs strive to
protect critical source water recharge areas from the threats including invasive feral pigs,
goats, deer, and cattle. Our worst and most water thirsty invasive weeds such as strawberry
guava, Miconia, pampas grass and more human related issues, such as wild fires and illegal
dirt biking. Our achievements are numerous and progressive. For example, in the last year,
by maintaining a staff of 11, our program in West Maui has increased our management
footprint through fencing from 46 percent to 50.4 percent of the watershed, an increase of
nearly 4,000 acres. We achieved these increases by helping to complete fences across
Honolua Watershed and strategically fence portions of Honokowai Valley and the peaks of
Ukumehame, Launiopoko, and Olowalu. We have also controlled several thousand
strawberry guava through staff control, hundreds of public volunteers, and use of herbicide
ballistic technology, a paintball delivery system applied, which applies herbicide to weedy
targets pioneered by Dr. James Leary Our undulate control programs now use forward
looking infrared to find animals in the forest, and we complete those surveys via helicopter.
We're also sampling water quality in Honolua Valley. Other advances include the use of
social media. We have 198 likes on Facebook. I challenge each of you to try to be our
number 200, and we have also continued our volunteer restoration project in Waihee. In
addition, we are now implementing a five-year management plan and --
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. BROSIUS: --have contributed extensively to a community wild fire protection plan that
encompasses Lahaina and Wailuku. Sum up, we are expanding rapidly. We have a six mile
fencing project from Lahaina to Olowalu in the plans for next coming years and we could
very much use your support to sustain our management, which currently encompasses
24,000 acres as well as progress to protect to the rest of the watershed. Thanks very much to
DWS and the Council for their past support and hopefully your future support. Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Brosius. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could. . .do you have that in text that we could get a copy of?
MR. BROSIUS: I could forward a more complete form.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please, if you would, and to Mr. Chair, yeah, 'cause you
brought up some interesting statistics and I'd like to have that on hand, please. But thank
you very much for all your hard work and what you folks do out there in the field. Thank
you.
MR. BROSIUS: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: If you'll forward it to the Committee Staff-MR. BROSIUS: Absolutely.
CHAIR WHITE: --they'll distribute it to the Members. Members, other questions for Mr. Brosius?
Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. BROSIUS: Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: And after Rob Hoonan is next, and then we'll go to the District Offices.
MR. HOONAN: Aloha, Chairman White, Council. My name is Rob Hoonan, director of facilities
at the Grand Wailea Hotel. I'm here today to provide testimony regarding the proposed
water rate increases. As you have heard today, the hotel industry here on Maui continues to
be challenged with business costs, they increase all the time. Amongst those is sewer rates,
tipping fees, and water rates that we're discussing today. Our industry is and continues to
implement conservation measures across the board in all different areas of resources. This
makes sense from a business perspective, but also because we strive to remain sustainable
and competitive in a world market. It's very important that today we urge you and I urge you
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to please to consider that these increases be deferred or be incremental in such a way that
they don't impact our business costs and our viability as these other costs have that we
cannot avoid. It's very important that we stay sustainable. You've heard that we're a large
employer and much of Maui's economy depends on us, so we are asking for that
consideration today. And please, if you can, see to it that this is appropriate, it's right across
the rate payers appropriately and with us in mind. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Hoonan. Members, questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Hoonan, for being here.
Just wanted to check to make sure, have you been following the Water Resource Committee
meetings where we discussed this at almost ad nauseum? Have you seen any of those
meetings?
MR. HOONAN: I have seen some of them, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So you're aware of our dilemma and the cost that does to
even maintain the system?
MR. HOONAN: Absolutely and I am close. . .I talk to Dave Taylor a lot and I applaud the efforts
that they've made in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So you are aware that if we don't raise rates that the system
will fail and rather quickly?
MR. HOONAN: We understand that and we just would like to see that it's. . .we like and we
understand the capital infrastructure upgrades that you need to do and those things, we'd just
like to see that this be an appropriate increase if there is an increase.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much,
Mr. Hoonan.
MR. HOONAN: Thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: And we'll go to our District Offices, starting with Hana. Dawn, do you have any
testifiers this morning?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office, and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. We'll go to Lanai. Denise, do we have any testifiers there?
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MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai, and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Ella, do you have any testifiers on Molokai?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, ladies. We'll call our next testifier here in the Chamber. Pomaikai
Kaniaupio-Crozier, followed by Sherman DePonte.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: Aloha kakahiaka kakou. . . .(Spoke in Hawaiian). .. Sandy Baz.
Just wanted to give my greeting to all of you and thank you for the time. My name is
Pomaikai Kaniaupio-Crozier. I'm the Puu Kukui Watershed Preserve manager and just
wanted to come and really share a little bit. We've received County funding this year from,
through the Department of Water Supply and wanted to express our appreciation in your
folks support. Since the last time I saw you folks on last week Monday, we've had 13 inches
plus rain. You look outside and it's another couple inches and going up as of 10:30, you
know, and we really rely on the support to take care of the watershed, make sure that we're
able to capture all of these different things. The Department of Water Supply being that we
were a newly awarded and partnered with the County provided a lot of stewardship as well as
guiding us, walking us through the process. For me, it was really new, so I really appreciate
the staff and the leadership that kind of helped us what to do, what is the process, what is the
forms, as well as your folks continuous support of all of the watershed partnerships
throughout the State. Puu Kukui Watershed is a partner of West Maui Mountains Watershed
Partnership, you folks heard Chris Brosius give testimony. We take care of 8,600 acres, he
takes care of the rest of the 50,000, you know, and your continuous support of not pitting
partners against each other to give additional allocations means that more leveraging, more
partnerships can go on. I wanted to thank you folks for that. We rely on partners like MISC
to take care of invasive species coming in. I have a small crew, so a lot of times we're
looking at each other and we're asking strategic operations, which 2,000 acres you going take
today, you know, and when you're walking, oh, it take a few days for me to recuperate. So
we rely on helicopter to get us into remote locations, volunteers, and support, but the State
Department of Land and Natural Resources as well as MLP's private match, U.S. Fish and
Wildlife, it's really joyous to see the County being the leader taking care of our resources,
you know, and I give my keiki and my ohana fresh drinking water. Ah, it's really a really
good feeling, you know, when you go to other places, you're afraid to drink their water, you
really are, you want to buy bottled water, and to be able to see your family drink clean water,
you know -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: --it's the right thing. So with that, I'd like to continue to ask for
additional support. I also wanted to mention as a director for the West Maui Soil and Water
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Conservation District that we received funding for SWCD. This is really important because
the technical assistance helps the conservation plans, all of the grading and grubbing.
Yesterday, we had a meeting and those plans are thick and we've gotta go through them.
Without the technical support I probably wouldn't review any of the grading and grubbing,
just be too time consuming, so I wanted to thank you folks for that too. Lahaina Watershed
project brought in over 14 million of Federal funds, yeah. Without those positions and
without the County funding, we would never be able to do that. Mahinahina Treatment
Plant, right below Puu Kukui Watershed Preserve is an integral part outside of the private
systems to the West Side. Now there's proposal for Kahana Well -MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: --and the Department of Water Supply is working well with the
SWCD. So mahalo nui for your folks time and you guys support.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Pomaikai. Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Pomaikai, for
being here and, yeah, I appreciate all the work you folks been doing. And, yes, were we not
called the wettest spot just within the last couple months on Earth?
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: Yes. And it was on the news this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Again.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: We've exceeded 100 inches.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And of course, you know, I live direct downslope of all
that, and so I've seen it myself, but and thank you for what you folks are doing. So. . .and I
know you're a newly funded entity as of last year, so you're seeking again this year.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And is it the same amount or you looking for increase at all or?
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: No, we're looking for an increase to 400,000 this year. We noticed
there's more work, there's more effort. Not only Mahinahina Treatment Plant wants water,
there's a new well that is in the Mahinahina area and there's proposed well in the Kahana.
So we can't just keep doing the work, the good work that we have been, we need to make
sure we do better work because more water is being drawn out of that area, so every square
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hectare is very important, you know, the more draw you have, you better make sure you take
care of every little spot. So the request is increasing so that we can provide the Department
of Water Supply, the County that resource, that finite resource.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much for all your hard work and what you do.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions, Members?
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: Mahalo

.(Spoke in Hawaiian).. ..

CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. Sherman DePonte will be followed by Roger Yamagata.
MR. DEPONTE: Before I start, I just wanted to just say I'm hearing impaired, so if you guys can
speak up louder, and I'm gonna blame my dad but it's not his fault. It's just nature, it's what
God gave me. In any case, I'm Sherman DePonte, Sherman Dudley DePonte. I'm with
Akamai Land Surveying. I want to say hello to all the Council members and Chairman. I'm
here on, I'm speaking on behalf of myself and the locals that live here. I lived here for, for
mine, for me, it's fifth generation. I'm with Akamai Land Surveying so that puts me in tune
with a lot of stuff that's happening in the County. I've been. . .over the years, I've watched a
lot of mismanagement of funds, and I gotta say for me, 1992 is when I bought my property
all the way up to now. We've demanded, we've asked, we've begged, we've tried
everything to get the people to look at us Upcountry and respect us, because we do provide
food, we grow vegetables, we have farms, we have cattle, we have things that put together. It
is local, it is us, the roots. In any case, to get things rolling, with the Upcountry water, my
great grandfather and a handful of people along with, I think it was Manuel Miguel put
together though, Upcountry waterline, we didn't wait, they didn't wait for the County to
come in, at the time they didn't have the County yet, it was like District, they put in the
waterline. What is considered the Kula waterline, the first one. When up there and also
made the catchment system to put it together. So when you talking privately, the hotels
putting it in, privately the locals had to do it to get the water so that we can get food to our,
you know, our children and to the rest of the island so we can be self-supported.
Mismanagements of funds I'm saying, we need to look at the Department, the Water
Department seriously. We are meeting at the Kula meeting before Alan Arakawa became
our Mayor and he was standing there with all other mayor candidates and I asked in the
crowd, my time to speak, I asked in the crowd, how many of you trust the Water Department,
let's have a show of hands, and there's over hundred-something people and if you don't
believe me, check the minutes on that. What happened is not a single hand came up, and
why is that, I asked again, how many of you feel that the Water Department is working for
us, the Upcountry people or anyone in the County, they're working for us to help us? There
was again, no show of hands, very powerful. I looked at Alan and I said, Alan, you have
your work cut out. We're promised water meters couple months into his term, that didn't
happen. We're still working on it. I appreciate the efforts of them, but I think we need to
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look deeper into that. Now is the time, we're giving money to these people to give water to
different parts of our island. You're asking -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. DEPONTE: --for an increase, I say yeah, because times are tough, we need increases for that to
pay it off, but we need checks and balances from this guy, not false promises, checks and
balances. I'm over here with this shirt that I wear usually to come, and I do wash it often, but
it's a Holy Ghost shirt, it's over hundred years, 120 years now that church been up. They put
it up basically was praying, praying for water, praying for help from this community to help
us, 120 years. I only been here 20 years trying to get my water thing going and again, I'm
with Akamai Land Surveying. I have a lot of different projects I work on. Anyone of you
who want to sit down and talk about the. . .I can show you on every single one
mismanagement funds for the County that is wasted on some areas that should not be wasted.
We need water in Kula, we need water Upcountry, we need pipes fixed, we need roads built,
better roads, paved roads -MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MR. DEPONTE: --and it just. . .I'm just going, you know, I haven't been here for a while so it's
kind of like the three minutes come up real fast. And in any case, if you have questions
about it, you can talk to me. We as Upcountry came together with the County and put
together your 36-inch line that came from Waihee all the way down to Kihei or all the way to
Makena, that was a County effort. County meaning us locals helped with the hotel industry
with other people.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for sharing your passions and we appreciate it. Members, any
questions for the testifier? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you very much, Dudley,
for being here this morning. You've been here many, many times and I'm sure long before I
got here and that's been, you know, we're in our eighth year here. You mentioned, you made
a very serious statement, and I'd like to ask you if you can give us an example. You said that
there's mismanagement. Can you give us one example so we understand what you talking
about?
MR. DEPONTE: I have many, I will pick one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you can think of just one.
MR. DEPONTE: Okay. One, okay, the first one, the County put in a waterline, an eight-inch
waterline going from five corners all to Holokai. Now, if you drive that road and see what's
happening on that road, they've got water meters in the grass, I mean, on the banks in the
grass, we had to put in, not water meters but the fire hydrants for fire protection, okay,
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2,000-feet of waterline went in there. These people are on private water system, they're on
catchment, they're on, they can drill for water. We up in Kula, our drilling is 4,000, for
mine, is 4,000-feet, others is 2,000, 3,000 feet, if we're gonna drill for any water. And if
we're gonna get catchment, come on, this is Kula, you know, we've got a lot water this past
couple months but usually it's dry. So in any case, right there, that pipeline, when they say
bang for the bucks, when you go in and talk to Taylor, it's bang for the bucks, you know, we
get. . .we putting in waterline for bang for the bucks. That's no bang for the bucks. The
bucks is up where we need it. Kula needed the waterline, I needed a 3,000-foot waterline,
that's gonna cost 3.8 million with a water tank. Now, that one there as an example, that
could've been, that same waterline could be put in up in some area up in Kula to help, instead
again, you know, that's just one, but there's.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, but thank you very much. That helps me understand the kind of
thing that you're referring to, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very
much, Mr. DePonte.
MR. DEPONTE: Thank you for having me.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Roger Yamagata, followed by Annette Niles, and Ms. Niles is
the last person to have signed up, so if there's anyone else in the Chambers that would like to
provide testimony today, please sign up with at the desk outside. Good morning. Go ahead,
Mr. Yamagata.
MR. YAMAGATA: Good morning, Council Chairman, Committee Chairman, and Council
members. I'm testifying on a non-water issue this morning. My name's Roger Yamagata,
and I represent Maui Disposal as its general manager. I'm here today to testify in support of
funding the new Metals Recycling Convenience Center to be located on the upper level of
the Central Maui Landfill. There are three major issues facing the County under the existing
metals recycling program that the new center will address. First is illegal roadside dumping.
Residents who take time to load their appliances, tires, and batteries are turned away at the
landfill and the items usually end up on the side of the road. There are currently no metal,
tire, or battery recyclers open on weekends. The convenience center will accept these items.
The second issue is the lack of storage space in the two existing metal recycling roll out bins.
Metal objects are left on the ground when the bins are overloaded, creating a hauling safety
issue. We have over 300 roll off boxes on island that may be used as swap boxes. Third
issue is one of safety, due to the absence of personnel in the upper level, customers may get
hurt throwing heavy items over the railings into the bins below. There was already one
incidence at Olowalu Convenience Center where a resident fell into the bin and got injured.
Onsite personnel will assist residents in unloading their vehicles. Staff would also be
responsible for loading metals into the proper bins. This will greatly reduce the risk of
residents getting hurt. In addition to accepting tires, batteries, and appliances, the new metal
center would purchase nonferrous metals such as copper and brass, and as well as HI 5
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containers to make this a true one-stop metals recycling center. The new metal center would
be open to the public from 6:00 to 3:00 p.m. Mondays through Saturdays and on Holidays.
Maui Disposal would hire five additional employees to cover the six operating days and an
additional driver to service all full bins. Our staff would also assist nine from personnel in
disposing of rejected items from almost daily outside of the landfill gate as well as to keep
the upper level free of flying trash and materials left on the ground. Trained personnel will
answer any question on where the collected items will be recycled and on the merits of
recycling. There are currently no landfill staff available to provide these services.
Additional County funds would be used to hire the additional six positions, purchase storage
containers, and vehicles that Maui Disposal would provide under this contract.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. YAMAGATA: We urge the Council to approve funding for the additional services to the
residents of Maui. They would increase the amount and types of recycling materials. Thank
you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Yamagata. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And hi, Mr. Yamagata, thank you for being
here. So am Ito understand that you have a signed contract to do this service?
MR. YAMAGATA: The RFP was issued last year. We were the only bidder. We negotiated with
the Environmental Manager Director. We agreed on a price but has not been funded yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. All right. Thank you, Mr. Yamagata.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Yamagata, for being
here. I tried to listen carefully and I don't know if I got it. You mentioned twice six
employees, are those six plus six or just six?
MR. YAMAGATA: We plan to start with six additional new employees that we currently do not
have.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Very good. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, real quick, Chair. Sony.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr.. . .thank you. Mr. Yamagata, currently there is metals
being taken, is that another. . .are you currently doing a service there or is there another
company?
MR. YAMAGATA: We were doing just a hauling contract that just pulled the boxes, full boxes to
the recycler, that contract ends today, so as of tomorrow I don't know what the landfill staff
is gonna do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. YAMAGATA: But there's no monitoring of the box, people can throw what they want into the
two bins.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Yamagata. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: So just to clarify, so currently the residents are putting things into a metals box
and then you're hauling it and doing the separation at your facility.
MR. YAMAGATA: No, not at my facility, but at Hammerhead Metals, the only -CHAIR WHITE: Oh. Okay.
MR. YAMAGATA: --scrap dealer. If there's tires or batteries or contamination found in those
boxes, we then have to reload those and take on to another recycling site.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you for
your testimony.
MR. YAMAGATA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And our next testifier is Annette Niles.
MS. NILES: Good morning, Chair, Council members. First of all, I would really want to thank you
guys for last week, for giving us a chance for tonight's meeting. I know it was really a hard
thing to do but you guys did it and we so appreciate it, because our farmers and ranchers will
be here tonight. But anyway, I'm here right now and I've been hearing people complain
about Upcountry being crybabies, Why do they pick. . .why do we pick this area because
we're grown here, not flown here. They need to understand that they have much more than
we have. What does Upcountry have in amenities? We have no sidewalks, lights on our
streets. Does the people have a skate place for these kids, they've been out for the last, I
mean, I went to Budget the last year heard about skate parks, they didn't get one yet. You
know, in Kihei, Lahaina, you know, everybody, they all have, you know, great amenities,
you know, like for us, for our water, the people in the areas have to, like for us have to sign
papers when we build a house, they have to sign these papers with the Department of Water
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Supply when they build so we have, so we release them from liabilities because just in case
the Fire Department gets to us but there's no water in the hydrants to put out the fire, but no,
we're the first ones to get hit with these ridiculous hike and fees for meters, taxes, but they
never seem to get this. Maybe they should really listen to the people that put them in office.
This guy had a great idea to have the Planning make a rule to put sprinklers in the house
plans when they build their homes, just in case the crybabies have no water for them to put
fires to save their homes, this would even bring their insurance down. So I ask you, please,
please take consideration for Upcountry people because the fees are ridiculous. This water
meter fees are ridiculous and we have nothing. The rest of the people have great stuff. I
mean, we foresee that we need to raise things, but we did in the past have money put towards
infrastructure that was never ever, ever done. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Thank you. Oh, Ms... .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead, go ahead, I'll wait till afterwards.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Niles, for being here. Good morning.
MS. NILES: No, thank you guys.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And your last comment, monies were put towards infrastructure
that were never done, can you elaborate?
MS. NILES: Way back in the '60s, my dad is retired, was retired 42 years from the Water
Department. In that time, in the '60s, there was a. . .they had. . .the Water Department asked
that the people of Kula be taken out $25 extra to pay their water so they could take that
money and put it into infrastructure to build the reservoirs and, you know, upkeep the
reservoirs, that never happened. You know, we don't mind even now trying to put money
away, but can we trust the Water Department? They didn't put that promise then, will they
do it now?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you for that example, Ms. Niles.
MS. NILES: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Ms. Niles, for being here. I appreciate it.
What you're basically saying is these water use and development fees and other fees that are
being proposed has a major, major impact with very little results coming back to the farmers
and the ranchers.
MS. NILES: Yes. Very much so and you gotta think now, we don't even have the farmers that we
had. Many of them are gone. Where's the water? I mean, much more extra water, it's just
being thrown away. Look at all this beautiful rains, where did it go, to the ocean, down in
the ocean, you know, when we could be catching everyone if they use the money right. You
know, it would be in the right place. We wouldn't have to be with all these fees. We
want. . .we don't contest the fees going out but this is ridiculous. I mean, the fees should go
up gradually, gradually, gradually, no they want to hit us and kill us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I understood, and again historically the Department, you
know, for five years never had a rate increase and today we still playing catch up. You're
well aware of that, Ms. Niles, right.
MS. NILES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, again I understand your plight and hopefully
tonight you guys will be here.
MS. NILES: Oh, yes. I'm talking on the waterlines tonight and we have a lot more to talk about
tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. NILES: Thank you very much for hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, thank you, Ms. Niles.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions? Seeing none, thank you, Ms. Niles. Have you signed up
outside? Please come to the podium.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: May I have a point of order, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Are you. . .what is the point of order?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: If you go ahead and let me speak, you probably make less work for
your Staff.
CHAIR WHITE: Our rules are that you sign up in order to testify. I'm happy to have you.. .
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: So Mr. Victorino's only one for the first amendment? Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I'm.. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's okay. Thank you. The rules are the rules though. I mean, I
asked your Staff to get me the rules of signing up, so they said they'd get me the rules. So
that's fine.
CHAIR WHITE: All we ask is that you sign up in order to testify. You're happy to testify now and
then sign up afterwards.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, thank you, sir.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. And we'll go back to our District Offices to check in with
them to see if anyone has shown up, and we'll first go to Hana. Dawn, do you have any
testifiers?
MS. LONO: There is no one waiting to testify at the Hana Office, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And Denise, on Lanai, any testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And we'll go finally to Molokai. Ella?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, ladies. And seeing there no one else in the Chambers,
without objection, we'll close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Public testimony is closed and we will proceed with the review of the
Fire and Public Safety Department, Ocean Safety Program.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC

DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND PUBLIC SAFETY
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CHAIR WHITE: So, Chief, you can proceed.
MR. MURRAY: Aloha, good morning. Looking over this program, we've had some discussions on
when and about this process moving forward within our Department, and based on the
information that we have readily and knowing that we just have promoted our BC of Ocean
Safety, March 1st, that we would ask this body to hold off to July of 2015, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Can you provide any reason for the requested delay?
MR. MURRAY: Well, we are working on our plans as we speak. As you know, the lifeguards will
be moving into a new Bargaining Unit and the discussion and negotiations start in June,
Unit 14 of HGEA, and we have, we still have discussions with HGEA upcoming on some of
the changes that need to be taken care of within this division. So we kindly ask for your
consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This comes as quite a big surprise, I guess. All of us were
anticipating this change from last year that it would be done this year. I'd like, first of all,
that Administration state because they seem to have thought it was gonna be done also. So
my question is who's on first? 'Cause I'm sure am confused right now. I mean,
Administration sends us down in Fire Safety, Ocean Safety, and now the Chief's asking for
another year, has no discussion been carried on between the two? I'd like those answers, all
those questions answered, please.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Victorino. I. . .there has been discussions and this
comes as a surprise to me, too, frankly. I knew there were still, you know, some concerns on
from the Fire Department side information and they need to get their plan together and
different things like that, but I would have to discuss this new item with the Managing
Director and Mayor before responding any further.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not the best answer I was expecting but fine. Mr. Chair, I
leave it in your hands. How do we proceed when we have such a conflicting.. .
CHAIR WHITE: I think your question was more directed to the Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, fine, then let's hear it from the Chief.
MR. MURRAY: We've been asking that they hold off on this and if we go back to Section 8-7.4 of
the Charter that allows the Fire Chief to make that decision and, you know, we've
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respectfully have asked that. I know that you funded us our BC from July 1st and it took us
till March 1St to get that done. If we were able to fill that position in July 1st then that would
be a different story today, but that wasn't the case. We work diligently with DPS to get that
moving and the process took us to March 1st, so we got finalization in February and we're
able to fill that position. So but we need to realize is there's a lot of underlying things to deal
with the union as we move forward in getting those policies passed prior to absorbing the
Ocean Safety officers. And, you know, the Mayor's Office reached out to the other counties
that have Ocean Safety within them and their suggestions were to make sure that all of those
ideas and policies and procedures were done prior to the takeover. So I mean we have our
guy in a month and half now and we are still ironing out the procedures and those things need
to be worked on by their personnel as well, yeah, because it's shared and it's gonna affect
their employees. So once we take over everything can be a smooth transition.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask Corp. Counsel to ask, you know the
question I have is we're at this point and now we're hearing that the Chief is saying I'm not
ready when everything's been put into Fire. What the heck is happening and where do we go
from here?
CHAIR WHITE: That's a good question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, you know, this is. . .1 think we need a recess 'cause I
sure don't wanna continue on something that I don't have no idea what I'm trying to do. I'm
sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, if I can just share a comment or two, please. One, I'm in
full support of the Fire Chief. Two, Policy has not taken up its agenda item that was assigned
by Budget Committee regarding the transfer Ocean Safety to Fire Department and there's
reasons why the Committee did not take it up, okay. So I would say that the Chief has in my
understanding of the situation good grounds not to push through this at this time. There are
legal issues for me regarding the stewardship of the Committee I chair and those are big
issues that need to be discussed with Corporation Counsel and I would recommend executive
session.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa, anything that you would like to ask in open session if we.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and I don't know how far we can go here, but I'd like to hear
from Mr. Ueoka exactly what the Charter says. If he could refresh our memories. 'Cause it's
been alluded to that the Chief has the power to decide when, so is that true?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Ueoka?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It's on Page 62, Section -4, 15-4.
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MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair and Ms. Crivello. Page 62, Section 15-5, I'm sorry -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Four.
MR. UEOKA: --15-4, upon adoption of the proposed 2012 amendment to Section 8-7.4, the Maui
County Department of Fire and Public Safety shall provide the timetable for the transition to
include the functions of shoreline and ocean rescue and safety.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much, Mr. Ueoka. And my follow up question is I
totally hear what the Chief is saying, I hear what Mr. Hokama is saying, but my. . .I'm just
taken aback at the timing. This should have been told to us a long time ago, in fact before we
were given this budget and that's my issue, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any others? Mr. Couch, followed by Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Ueoka, it says, upon adoption of the
proposed 2012 amendment to Section 8-74, the Maui County, Fire Department, and Public
Safety shall provide the timetable for the transition. That doesn't give a deadline, so are they
supposed to do it immediately upon adoption or can they do it whenever? 'Cause we haven't
seen a timeline yet.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: Our guidance to the Fire Department was always to act reasonably and we believe
they have. I am not aware of the timeline being submitted to Council. I'm fairly certain it
was shared with the Administration on numerous occasions, and I believe the way their
timeline was set up was it was x amount of months from the date. It all started with the
hiring of the BC for Ocean Safety, then they had a game plan for x amount of months from
there they implement this and they're moving on from that point, so I guess the start of their
timeline really was that March date when they hired the BC as far as I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Chief. If I recall from the
previous, the last fiscal budget request, one of the major requests to have this transition
happen was the budget which we provided for the Battalion Chief for Ocean Safety. I guess
my question is that it appears as though there's a major delay in finalizing from the
Department of Personnel Services for this position, so it only happened what February?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Would you, you know, without putting anybody, you know, I'm
sure they have, DPS has their procedures as. . .did the delay come from DPS or is it
something that both of the Departments, Fire and. . .for the position to actually be available
for you to hire? Because it took a long time.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it did. We handed in our paperwork on June 6th on the adoption of this last
year's budget, so we went back and forth because this is a new position, there was, I mean, a
lot of back and forth. We cannot say DPS failed to -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MR. MURRAY: --provide that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MR. MURRAY: It just takes a lot of time because they have to confer with their other jurisdictions
as well as before they move on and going through the job description and all of those things
took us to February.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. So I guess, Chair, in all fairness to the
Department, you know, May our budget session end, at June submitted the requisition for the
Battalion Chief, February of 2014 the position was made available. So the time period is,
wasn't just a done deal. I think the Department tried to meet a timetable and I concur with
Councilmember Hokama for us to have more detailed explanations or whatever else is
involved for us to go into executive session.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama always knows more than the rest of us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, with all this being said and done, my question is number
one, just like Ms. Baisa, why weren't we told. . .this has been going on, we talked about this
in the beginning about Ocean Safety being transferred, nothing was said on day one. I was
here, nothing was said. I'm upset, because I don't like wasting my time getting to this point
and then say, oh, well, hey, I don't care if it's Hokama's Committee, I don't care whose
committee, but oh, we still gotta work on it. And secondly, if the Administration knows all
of this then why are you sending it this way to us in the first place knowing that the Chiefs
not gonna accept it, you know. And thirdly, it's not up to the Chief, it's up to the Fire Safety
to make that change, that timetable and that's never, we've never seen a timetable, we're still
waiting for something. So, you know, all of this reeks of wasted time, you know, we talk
about wasting time, we're doing it right now, right here, and I don't like wasting anybody's
time especially our Department's time. If it wasn't gonna be done then why didn't the
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Department tell the Mayor's Office and why didn't the Mayor's Office come down and tell
us, and now how do we change all this. I'm not sure how you change it. You gonna send it
back to Parks? How do you change it and send it back to Parks?
CHAIR WHITE: We're not at that point.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well, okay. I'm just saying, if you want to look at the
big picture.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, Mr. Chair, this is something that I think all of us are
very taken by. I don't care what the reasons are. We should've known before we got to this
junction. That's what I'm saying. It should have been said before we got to this junction,
`cause I don't think this was a secret but it was not said to us.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Staff has advised me we need to take a brief recess not on this issue but
another one. So we'll be in recess for just a couple of minutes. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:16 a.m.
11:24 a.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene. During the recess
we resolved the testimony issue that we needed to address during the recess, and we are back
onto the review of the Ocean Safety Program. And, Chief, do you have anything further to
provide?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair. Is there any possibility that we could meet in executive
session?
CHAIR WHITE: Can you give us some. . .either you or Mr. Hokama can give some indication as to
the type of issue we're dealing with.
MR. MURRAY: Well there are some policy issues brought to us by some staff from Ocean Safety
that I'd like to discuss.
CHAIR WHITE: So this has to do with personnel matters?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Corp. Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I think it's, would be confidential pursuant to State or Federal
Law, therefore it would be qualified to go into executive session to discuss.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to convene an
executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(8) of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, to
deliberate or make decision upon a matter that requires a, the consideration of information
that must be kept confidential pursuant to State or Federal law, or a court order.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I make the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, it's been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Victorino to go into
executive session. Any discussion, Members? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I can support the motion, but I wanna be sure you know when
we're going into executive session we have to meet certain standards about what we're gonna
discuss in there and for me the issue here is not about personnel. The issue is about the
timing of this notice and I just wanna make sure that that's clear.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Any further discussion? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, also is there an issue on liability? It's my understanding there
might be some issues on liability on this.
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then I think we may add that to the motion.
CHAIR WHITE: I think we have enough in the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Good.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, please signify by saying,
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". The measure passes seven ayes, zero noes to move into
executive session.
VOTE: AYES: Chair White, Vice-Chair Hokama, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
and Victorino.
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NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Guzman.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE; RECESS open meeting and CONVENE
executive session.

CHAIR WHITE: So we will recess the regular meeting and in order to go into executive session.
Recess. . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:26 a.m.
12:32 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene and we went
into executive session to discuss a number of legal issues and I will now turn back to the
Chief for brief comments regarding the challenges with the transition to bring Ocean Safety
into the Department of Fire and Public Safety that can be discussed in open session. Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair, for that opportunity. I also had couple other issues. We need to
seriously look at how we would cover the shortages within that division. Right now as it's
done today within Parks, they utilize pool life guards to fill in for the beaches so that none of
the beaches are closed. We need to take a look at that. We've discussed with the union
several different options. Their option is that would like us to hire more personnel to do the
coverages and I realize the challenges that you have, you know, with fringe benefits and what
have you. We had options of contract workers or having people on call part-time. They
weren't very in tune with that idea. So we still looking through other divisions within other
counties like Honolulu, Kauai, and Big Island on how they do it, so we have that information
if you want to request through us, but thank you for the opportunity to discuss.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that was a great opening and I just would like us to maybe consider
an option since this is gonna be, in a sense, new to Fire, although we've been doing it
through Parks, can we look at a third party contract for Ocean Safety? Put in those
requirements of concerns that the Committee, the Departments may have, the general
administration, the public and see if that is another reasonable option for us to consider as
fulfilling the Charter?
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CHAIR WHITE: Good point. Any other questions, Members? Seeing none, we will break for
lunch and we are finished with the review of Fire and Public Safety. So thank you, Chief, for
your.. .
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair and Committee members. I appreciate it.
CHAIR WHITE: What's the. . .the feeling is two o'clock. Okay. We'll be in recess until 2 o'clock.
Thank you very much, Chief and the rest of your folks with the white shirts in the back of the
room, mahalo. . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:35 p.m.
2:06 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene and we happy
to welcome Dave Taylor the Water Director to begin our review of the Department of Water
Supply. And the Department starts on page 663 and on page 19 or 19-1 of the Details. So,
Mr. Taylor, the floor is yours.

DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. At our last Water Resources Committee meeting, we laid
out our latest version of our long-term plan. The budget in front of you is essentially this
year's slice of that plan. We'll get to the CIP later, but it is the operations element in the
operational plan to meet that 20-year plan, which is the staffing, the equipment, et cetera, the
maintenance to keep the infrastructure functional to meet our primary duties, which are to
continue to supply water to our existing customers and to add infrastructure to support new
customers, and essentially everything in the budget is to accomplish those two goals. That's
really the only opening comments I have, Mr. Chair, as far as how you want me to proceed
I'm open to your direction.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, we will do with Water the way we worked yesterday with Fire. We
will go through the goals and objectives in the Budget book and then move to the Details for
the financial items. So, Director, why don't you move ahead and provide an explanation for
the Administration Program, please.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On Page 672, are the key activity goals and measures for
the Administration Program. There are two goals, maintain and improve water service and
quality, and second, ensure facilities meet future needs. So basically, on goal three, improve
employee training and evaluation programs. So under the first goal, there are two
implementing actions, which first is to keep the CIP design projects on schedule. That goes
back to. . .frankly, some of the difficulty we've had is taking the 20-year plan that you've all
seen and say how do we make that a performance measure of that plan, because that's a
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multi-year plan and it's very difficult to measure it in any one year. So this is what we've
come up with is this goal number one and the goal a little further on is are those projects on
schedule. That is our primary capital improvement goals, keeping that 20-year plan on
schedule. Second is supporting watershed protection. I knew there were some testimony this
morning, we've discussed that before. We fund watersheds because the watersheds are
where the water starts to get into the aquifers so that eventually we can provide it. So we
fully support those watersheds and that continued action so that it continue to improve and
replenish our aquifers so we have water. And then finally the employee evaluations, there's
been a change, I'm sure you've heard on how employee evaluations are done over the past
couple of years and it's been just a new training process for a lot of us to get up to speed on
that. We find that from a supervision and employee performance standpoint, we're trying to
use these performance evaluation programs to make sure that people are clear about their
expectations so that supervisors are managing more actively. So moving forward and doing
a better job on this fits into those goals. All I have to say about our goals and measures.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Baisa, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you could give me a minute and come back, I'd appreciate it,
thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: We'll start with the Chair of the Committee, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And again, Mr. Taylor, thank you. You know,
you normally come before us and kind of give us the overall picture, so now it's easier to
make sense of what we're looking at, and I have really at this time in this area, I don't see
any major questions for the Department, although I may want to go back. . . well, when we
get to those areas such as rates and on the other ones. I have a lot of questions in that sense,
but right now, this area, no. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just in general, Director, since you're a, you're the responsible of a
major Department with utility components. Can you tell me what efforts has, have you or
your Department done to minimize any cyber-attacks to our key County infrastructure?
MR. TAYLOR: Cyber security has been an issue in our industry since before September of 2001,
ever since we started using our SCADA systems, which are automatic telemetry systems. It
ramped up after that obviously when it became more of a concern. Our SCADA systems
operate behind the County firewall, so Mr. Verkerke in the IT group is responsible for that
firewall, so that's the first level of protection. The second is that systems can be hardwired
so that certain functions can't be done electronically, it can't be done remotely as protective
measures. For an example, I don't know if the elevator in this building, I assume there's
some computers operating that, I don't know if it's hooked up to the Internet but even it is
there'll be an acceleration break that is not hooked up to the Internet that even if somebody
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took over the controls couldn't drop it because that's a mechanical interlock that can't be
overridden through a cyber-attack. So any system can have a mechanical or electrical
hardwired systems that prevent certain things from happening. So a combination of the IT
system with firewall plus internal things that our people do to design systems so that to
minimize either accidental or purposeful catastrophic types of failures is always part of our
designs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you do a periodic training or run through scenario should something
occur so that your personnel has at least some knowledge of the procedures to implement
during an emergency or unforeseen requirements?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't want to say every day that happens but that's a regular occurrence. We
have a number of electronic technicians who run these systems and there are often things,
although they may not be cyber-attacks, there is interference from things in all sorts of
systems that go down where there's lack of communication, where they have to diagnose
problems and fix them, put things in manual, et cetera. So most, I think, most utilities like
this have system outages just naturally due to failure of various components and that's why
we have full-time electronic technicians. They run those systems, they interface with our
other operations people to diagnose, troubleshoot, and fix those things. So that's something
that is happening on an ongoing basis.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Great. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are we. . .can we talk about the watershed at this point or are you
just looking at the goals?
CHAIR WHITE: I'd rather we just do the goals. Watersheds will come up in the review of the
Details.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So we're just talking about the goals, nothing on Page 670 and
671?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we'll cover that when we get into the Details.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. I appreciate it. I'm looking at
Page 672, under the goals, and it's goal three, where we talk about employee training and
evaluation. I am very happy to see that the Department is trying harder to get annual
evaluations done, but what I'm concerned about is once they are done, what happens to
them? Once you've identified strengths and weaknesses, how do you follow up in helping
people overcome their weaknesses?
MR. TAYLOR: There is a little over 200 people in our Department, and I cannot speak to exactly
what happens at every level. I can tell you that what we do with our division heads, that
they're told to do to their managers and on and on is set up their goals of what. . .how they
want to move forward, an implementation plan of how to do that, and to make sure that
they're working with their people to do those things. So that can be informal things, like
meeting regularly, saying, you know, how is this going, there's all sorts of formal training,
we send people to conferences, classes, there's classes within the County. We've sent a lot
of people, for example, to the Department of Personnel Services has put together in house
sort of supervisor/manager training session about 50/60 hours of training. A lot of us are
instructors of different courses. We're sending a lot of people to those kind of classes. Se I
think that's just an ongoing supervisory/manager role to look at people's performance, how
we want to help them proceed in their careers, and balancing the work we need them to do
with finding time for these training, mentoring, and other opportunities.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That doesn't help me very much, but, you know, how do you handle
identifying people with potential to move out of, say, a laborers position into supervision?
MR. TAYLOR: These kind of things are driven by the Civil Service laws, and although we may
recognize somebody who's got all sorts of talents. We also have to balance giving
everybody a shot at training, at different opportunities. So every time there is a position at a
higher level, there is either an internal or an external recruitment and people are encouraged
to apply, are encouraged to do what they can to move up, and we do what we can to make
opportunities available to learn more. Some people take advantage of this, some choose not
to, et cetera. I think the, something I brought is telling people that it's on them. We don't
just hire somebody we pick or the senior person and then train them. We're trying to create
this culture where people understand it's up to them to build their skills to get ready for that
next opportunity. But Civil Service law drives who gets these opportunities and how that's
done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any other questions in the Budget book, Members? Okay. We'll start
with the Details on page. . .we'll start on Page 19-3. Mr. Victorino, any questions on the
Water Administration Program positions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Not at this time, no.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, if you can help us understand your request for your expansion
position since we've already been told the amount of work City and County of Honolulu
provides with your billings, explain the need for the cashier, too, please.
MR. TAYLOR: This is the same casher position that was heard and approved as a budget
amendment just about two months ago, so the Budget Director can explain why that's in the
budget as expansion position. I think that's just a matter of protocol, but this is not another
position. This is the same position that this body and this Committee just approved a few
months ago as a budget amendment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if Director Baz can give comment, please.
MR. BAZ: Yes. Member Hokama, the Mayor's Proposed Budget document compares the Council
Adopted Budget to the Mayor's Proposed Budget, so the Council Adopted Budget as of June
as of last year is what we're comparing to. This. . .since the position was added subsequent
to the Council Adopted in amendment that we're. . .it's an additional, it's expansion because
it's an expansion from the Council Adopted version of the Fiscal Year '14 Budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But so we're clear, Directors, this has been approved by Council and it's
authorized and has it been filled, Director Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, it has been filled.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So I guess I need to just make the appropriate adjustments then,
Chairman, regarding this since it's not really one true expansion per se.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I'm good for now, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm good on the position, I mean, the positions details, I. . .when
we get a chance, when will we be talking about since we're in the Details now about
watershed?
CHAIR WHITE: Watersheds are on.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They're back in the back.
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CHAIR WHITE: They're on page. . .I had them a minute ago, they're on Page 19-18, so we'll get
there.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right, when we get there. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Depending on how quickly we move. So no questions with the staffing?
Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are we on Water Administration Program?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. I have some questions that are in relations to the
operations programs that goes back to Page 670 - 671 for some, and then I have questions for
the Details.
CHAIR WHITE: Well most of these are covered in the Details. Which ones did you have questions
on?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So the operation materials and supplies, the
953083-6013, you have a Water Meter Inventory, and I picked this up from Budget Proposal
671, Page 671. I'd like to know how many meters will this replace and you're asking for
additional funding through replace meters and transponders on Molokai. So I'd like to know
the total number of meters and transponders that will need to be replaced on Molokai.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, we're gonna have to get back to you in writing on the numbers. I can
tell you that the meters have a useful life of, I think, right around ten years or so. Is that
about right, staff? Fifteen years, staff is saying about fifteen years. So with over 35,000
meters out there, there's just a regular methodology to replace them. This is part of that.
There's nothing, there's no special project, but we can get you the number, but this is a
something that's gonna be basically in the budget every year are just regular replacement of
meters and this year we're targeting the ones on Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So you'll send us back with the numbers. So every year,
you're basically budgeting 250,000 or does that vary?
MR. TAYLOR: The dollar values may be different, because Molokai is one geographic area and
that's next on the priority list of meters that are aging. Obviously, we're gonna try to do
those all, you know, at basically one time. So what exactly how much there'll be next year, I
don't know, but it's an ongoing program to just replace meters as they reach the end of their
useful life.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. And then also with your budget proposal on
Page 679, your operation materials and supplies, you have here, road patching materials, an
increase of $100,000, I guess a total of 500,000.
MR. TAYLOR: Correct. We do repairs and we're trying to do a better job hot patching our repairs.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And so do you hire contractor or do we utilize our Public
Works?
MR. TAYLOR: What we do is we. . .our guys do repairs when they happen. We cold patch them.
And then we contract, once we have enough, we put them together and hire a contractor to do
them. We have also contracted with Public Works. For example, just recently, they had a
contractor in the area where we had a break, and so we had their contractor do it and we
transferred the money, that kind of thing. So we work with Public Works on patching, but
when we have emergency repairs that are not near theirs, we tend to just group them every so
often, a few times a year and put them out to bid.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. If I make. . .may a still go on -CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --with Details? On Page 19.. .
CHAIR WHITE: I'd like to make sure we cover all the Administration positions first.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: This is Water Administration Program, it's regarding the Civil
Engineer III reallocation to Civil.. .
CHAIR WHITE: If it's a position, yeah, go for it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Okay. I guess for 19-6 and 19-7, where reallocating
Civil Engineer III to Civil Engineer IV, that increase of $31,884, and so that would get to
77,000. And then same with 19-7, a Supervising Engineer Aide reallocating to a Mechanical
Engineer and increase in pay. So, I guess, if you could explain the rationale behind the
reallocation and the increase of dollars.
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, I'd be happy to. A Civil Engineer III to Civil Engineer IV reallocation is
based on one of two things. It's either an existing Civil Engineer III who passed their
license. The difference between Engineer III' s and Engineer IV's, Engineer III is an
unlicensed position, Engineer IV is a licensed position. So there are times when we have an
Engineer III who passes his or her exam and becomes a licensed engineer and we reallocate
them to an Engineer IV. Often we may have an Engineer III position that is empty and we
say, look, let's try to hire a licensed Engineer so we reallocated before we hire. I don't
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remember which this is. Is this a filled position or an unfilled position? Let's ask my staff.
Does anyone know? I'll get back to you in just a second on that as soon as they let me.
CHAIR WHITE: Our record show that it's a filled position.
MR. TAYLOR: A filled position, so if it's a filled position, that means that it's an Engineer III who
is passing their license and being reallocated to an Engineer IV.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And so is that sort of the same explanation you have for the
Supervising Engineering Aide that becomes a Mechanical Engineer?
MR. TAYLOR: That's something little bit different. That is a place where the. . .Department used
to have a survey crew, and I think those positions were called Engineering Aides, though
they were, tended to help with surveying. We contract out most of our surveying and we're
behind on building permits and subdivision reviews, et cetera. So with that empty position,
we're proposing to turn that into an Engineer position to speed up permit reviews.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. I'll come back for more questions. Maybe you
wanna.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Taylor, if you could explain to us the purpose of the reorganization and if
we're contracting out the surveying work. What kind of opportunities are there for
elimination of positions if you. . .how many people were in the survey team?
MR. TAYLOR: You. . .from the time I've been here, there've been no surveyors. I don't know how
long ago these. . .there was actually a survey crew in the Department of Water Supply. It
was before my time. So I believe these positions have been empty and where. . .what our
needs are not to have survey crew, because when we do Capital Improvement Projects,
surveying for those projects is something we put in the contracts in the engineering
professional services contract. Where we're behind is permit and subdivision reviews. I
think you're aware from the Public Works Director, that the Council relatively recently
changed the ordinance so that first reviews have to happen within 30 days. We are
challenged with meeting that most of the time and we are simply manpower short to meet
those goals. So we feel the best way to proceed is to take these existing E/P's, change this to
a Mechanical Engineering position to increase our man hours we can put into building permit
reviews to try to do a better job meeting the requirements of that ordinance.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Our record show that the position numbers, 0110, 0112, and 0178 are
currently vacant. You know what the status of those positions is at this time?
MR. TAYLOR: Zero-one-one-zero, 0112, and 0178, are those the three?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
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MR. TAYLOR: Okay. 0110 is pending recruitment. . .all three are, 0110 is pending recruitment,
0112 is pending reallocation, and 0178 is pending recruitment.
CHAIR WHITE: Recruitment is that what you said?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And also position 0085, it shows as vacant.
MR. TAYLOR: Position 0085 is the current Water Conservation Specialist III, and that is also
pending a reallocation, which is tied to a proposed reorganization in that division.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Could you explain to us what the reorganization amounts to?
MR. TAYLOR: The Planning Division reorganization, there's a couple things going on there. First
of all, I think a lot of you who've been on Water Resources Committee for a long time know
that our previous Water Use Development Plan process was to contract most of that out. As
you've seen from a lot of the work we've done, we're doing a lot of that work ourselves.
We're trying to do that ourselves. We think we're the best ones to do it rather than trying to
contract it out. We are also tasked. . .we're gonna talk about grants a little bit later. We've
had to beef up our Grants Management Program. So we've got some slightly different work
that needs to be done within that group with writing the Water Use Development Plan,
keeping the Water Use Development Plan updated, doing grants management, as well as
doing some support for some of the engineering planning studies that we've been presenting
to Water Resources. So we're looking to modify that division to better be able to accomplish
those goals.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, other questions on the staffing? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And hello, Director Taylor, nice to see you.
So I'm looking, you have several Wastewater Inspectors. Wastewater like similar to the
wastewater for in EM, Environmental Management? Why are there.. .
MR. TAYLOR: It's the first time I'm seeing that here and I'm.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, I'm looking at Page 19-6, just glancing, you have one at
the bottom of that page. You have one at the top of Page 19-7, and then at the third from
bottom of 19-7, Wastewater Inspectors. So I'm just curious why they wouldn't be in EM,
and instead they're in your Department.
MR. TAYLOR: I appreciate you pointing that out 'cause just as you said it I. . .maybe I've seen that
those titles so long I didn't really notice it, but those are not Wastewater Inspectors, those are
just the Construction Inspectors we have. They are not Wastewater Inspectors. I'm not sure
how this mistake happened, but those are currently filled Construction Inspectors that support
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tie-in CIP projects, et cetera. But they are not Wastewater Inspectors, they are Water
Inspectors.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So accidently put waste in front of water.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, we don't find mistakes very often.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. I apologize for that. They're clearly, it's clearly a mistake.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair and Member Cochran, it's a Waterworks Inspector is the actual
position title, Waterworks Inspector.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Waterworks. . .okay, that makes more sense for this
Department.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes. Couple questions, more on the. . .so you're transferring
your Planner from the Planning Department to your Engineering, is that the norm to have
Planner in your engineering department?
MR. TAYLOR: We have a reorganization plan, which includes the transfer of one single Planner
into the Engineering Division. That particular person was hired to work on the computer
model of the water systems. Basically to build and operate computer models of the water
systems to do engineering and planning studies, et cetera. That person was hired into the
Planning Division. Because of that nature of the work, that work we feel is the same work
needs to be done, but we feel it's better do it in the Engineering Division because they're the
ones who are making decisions based on the state that they work with this on a day-to-day
basis. So the work is the same, we just feel that that position in that work is happening in the
wrong division. So we just physically want to move it to where it fits better to our operation.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And then that gives an increase in salary also?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't believe that gives an increase in salary, just we're just planning on moving
it. It may have an increase in salary based on Collective Bargaining type of issues, but that
movement itself is not a reason for it to be, to have an increase.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: One-o-nine on.. .
MR. TAYLOR: Oh, that's just an increase pursuant to the Collective Bargaining agreement for that
person in that position. They're due for their Collective Bargaining change, whether they
stay or go, whether they stay in one division or move that doesn't affect that.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: 0-two-six-nine, okay, I'll come back to that. The, and then,
and your Director's Office, you had. . .can you tell me what your expenditures were for
Fiscal '14 for the 165,000 for Professional Services and that we're gonna have it likewise for
this year, this fiscal?
MR. TAYLOR: We'll have to get back to you in writing about what our expenditures were.
Those. . .that expenditure in the Director's Office tends to be for things like water audits, rate
studies, that kind of thing, but exactly how much we spent last year, we'll have to get back to
you in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz, can you take a peek at that line item, 6132.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Mr. Chair, if we can move on, I'll pull that report up and we can get back to it.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And I would have the same question on Postage, 6040. It's quite low in
earlier years and it's jumped to 10,000.
MR. TAYLOR: The reason for that is as we've gone from bi-monthly billing to monthly billing, we
literally have twice as much postage.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, but this is in the Director's Office. The Postage is listed -MR. TAYLOR: Oh, I see.
CHAIR WHITE: --under fiscal and administration, that's where the big number is, it's 220,000.
This is just the $10,000 amount. I mean, I don't get a postcard from you, so I can't imagine
where that $10,000 is going.
MR. TAYLOR: I don't know. We'll have to. . .we'd have to get back to you on that. I know that
what staff tries to do is balance the budget details based on previous expenditures and exactly
what it was, I don't have that.
CHAIR WHITE: I bet your staff knows what it's for. Maybe you should invite them down here, so
they can probably answer.. .
MR. TAYLOR: I can see our Fiscal Officer furiously looking through papers, but if she shakes her
head up and down that she knows, I'll invite her to come down, otherwise I won't. . .also
have her say she doesn't know.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, we'll be happy to welcome her down here to make the process a little
quicker.
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MR. TAYLOR: Ms. Perdido, would you like to come down and sit with us?
CHAIR WHITE: She loves to come down here, right, Holly?
MR. TAYLOR: That was more of a rhetorical question.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I have the report up. Which sub-object code were you looking at?
CHAIR WHITE: 6040, and both of them are in 953000, 6040 and 6132.
MR. BAZ: Okay. 6040 for 953000, yeah, year to date expenditures were $766.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And -MR. BAZ: And.. .
CHAIR WHITE: --6132?
MR. BAZ: 6132 for 953000, year-to-date expenditures are 29,819 plus the current encumbrance of
$83,000. They had a prior encumbrance of 60,912. so the current balance available is
$113,060.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So the balance is 113.
MR. BAZ: 113, yeah, correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. I wanted to ask the Director,
you know, we're seeing before us what came from the Mayor's Office. Director, were any of
the positions that you would have liked to have in Administration shaved out of here?
MR. TAYLOR: Our. . .when we came in three years ago, if you recall, there used to be seven
programs in the Water Department. And we in our first budget, we changed that to two and
the Council agreed with that. So we took, Administration used to be a separate program, so
did Planning, so did Engineering, so did Fiscal, those all got combined to one program. So
whether some of this money is in the Director's budget or it's in Fiscal, at this point it's all in
the same program. So it. . .we put some of that, those funds in the Director's budget, so
whether some extra little expenses happen to be in Engineering or Planning or Fiscal, you
know, we can support any of those things so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That wasn't my question. My question was, did you get the
positions you wanted in this budget?
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CHAIR WHITE: Were there any positions -MR. TAYLOR: Sony.
CHAIR WHITE: --you requested that are not -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That you didn't get.
CHAIR WHITE: --is the question. You're turning slightly red, Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: I'm embarrassed that I only heard half your question while I was talking to
Ms. Perdido. I apologize. This is our proposed budget. And I think like every government
agency in the Country, we would like to do more and have more positions. We recognized
that there's a limit based on trying to manage rates and fees versus this, so we feel we can
meet our needs with this budget. And obviously we'd love to have some more positions in
all sorts of ranges, but we're not asking for any.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well let me ask you. . .let me tell you why I asked the question. I
asked the question because the Water Department is the subject of the day, not only here in
this Chamber but everywhere, and it's important to me that Administration and Water has the
people they need in order to do what we all want you to do. That's why I asked the question.
MR. TAYLOR: In Administration, I would say that in the Engineering group, we are behind on
permitting. We can certainly use more manpower to help with that, at the same time, we've
just had some staff turnover, some people are new with their jobs. We're going to see, we're
asking for another Mechanical Engineer as we talked about earlier. We're ready to wait and
see how we're doing next year. And we certainly may come back next year and ask for
more. We try to think like everyone else does, not to ask for too much at any one time before
we know how our last request helped. Again at this time, I would love to have some extra
positions, whether or not I could really justify asking you for them, yeah, I really can't which
is why they're not in the budget this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So in your opinion, there's nothing pivotal that you're missing, so
that if somebody says, well, why didn't you get this done, you can't say, well, because I
didn't have manpower.
MR. TAYLOR: This is as I said, this is always difficult. You never know, and I think everyone
knows it takes us, you know, roughly nine months to fill a position. We're mostly fully
staffed right now. It is possible that some people leave, some people go on various types of
leave and all of a sudden, you know, we're really short and we could have used it. If things
go well, you know, we hope to come back next time and say we've caught up on permits and
subdivision reviews, CIP' s on track, we're getting the monthly bills out and getting meters
read. There's a good chance this will be enough, there's also some things that could happen
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that it won't be enough. And again we balance really our wish list of saying, look, let's have
lots of extra versus the need to be sort of frugal with positions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Other questions on expenses and the Director's Office?
MR. TAYLOR: We're ready to answer that question on Postage that you asked earlier.
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, you gave us the.. .
MR. TAYLOR: As far as what it's for, I don't think we ever answered that question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten thousand dollars.
CHAIR WHITE: Well the budget is 10,000, they have spent 700, so that's why we haven't gotten
our postcards from him.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, `til she found the answer, that's why she found the
answer for you.
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. The 10,000 in the Director's Office is for postage when we have to send out
special mailings, for instance, if there's a drought request Upcountry or any kind of
notifications to consumers, we need to have some money available to be able to send out
those kinds of notices.
CHAIR WHITE: And roughly how many notices do you, would you be sending out in that kind of a
situation?
MS. PERDIDO: Could be up to 10,000 at a shot, notices, you know, that we would mail out. It just
depends where it's at, which area maybe Upcountry, maybe Lahaina could be.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. And the other question I had was in this year's budget, you
have $10,000 and you're asking for 10,000 again in 6201, Airfare and Transportation. The
prior expenditure was 4,000 one year and 3,000 in 2013. And then 6222, Per Diem
Non-Reportable, in '12 and '13 the amount was under 1,000 and you're requesting 6,000 and
requesting 6,000 again this year. So if you can, Mr. Baz, if you can pull up those and what
do you expect the, your spend out to be on these two items?
MR. BAZ: 6201, Airfare, Transportation for 953000 is, yeah, the $344, year-to-date.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And for 6222?
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MR. BAZ: Doesn't look like any expenditures. 953083 has a significant amount in that program,
but they're different.
CHAIR WHITE: What was the total again?
MR. BAZ: Zero for 953000.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yes.
MR. BAZ: For the Per Diem is no expenditure.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay. And then, Mr. Baz, you mentioned that you had permit data.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, during the Fire Department discussion yesterday, there was a request to
find out how much actual permits we've been issuing over the years, and looks like for, these
are calendar year data, so calendar year 2013 as of last full year of datas would be
1,553 permits for a total of $342 million. Calendar year 2012 would be a little bit higher,
1,578 permits and a $386 million value. 2011 was the lowest year of the last, looks like
about seven years, at 1,432 permits or $263 million. The data that we got goes back to 2007,
which is I think the peak of the permits issued was 2,696 permits at $765 million.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. What was the number for 2013?
MR. BAZ: One-five-five-three. And year-to-date for 2014 it's 418 permits at 176 million.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Ms. -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --Cochran followed by Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And looking. . .is this the proper time to talk about
workman's compensation, 19-12, 6260? And looking at the amount. . .'cause we have a
handout previously that breaks down all the workman's comp claims by department, and
looking at the Water Supply at 18 claims and over $400,000 in total payout. If you look at
Police Department, it was 72 claims, they have a 367,000. So the payout with Water
Department is much higher and way less claims, so what, where's that difference, where's
that coming from? Why the huge payout for Water versus a public safety entity?
MR. TAYLOR: You know, I think those depend on the specific cases and the investigations of
worker's comp does happens under a contract with Risk Management. So once an employee
is injured and files the paper work, at that point, we don't manage what happens through the
worker's compensation investigation, and we basically just pay what we're told to pay. So I
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think any specific questions about what are the reasons one department's higher than another
are probably best given to Risk Management, because we really just don't get involved in
that end of the investigations or anything else.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you for that comment, Director, but I'm
wondering perhaps a goal in your overarching goals of your Department could address the
situations and pay attention more towards safety factors, proper training, proper use of
equipment, whatever the case may be, I think it's quite important to figure out why these
claims are so high and majority of it looks like it comes from the temporary total disability
trust account and that's paying people who no longer even work for the County, I believe it
states on the bottom, no longer on County's payroll. So that's quite a chunk.
MR. TAYLOR: What I can tell you is every single injury claim, injury report comes to my desk,
they are signed by the division heads of the division and our administrative officer, and we
look at why, there's a section on there of what could've been done, what needs to be done
differently, et cetera, which go right into directives to management staff of what we're
supposed to be doing better. So I agree with you that anyone getting hurt is too many. I
think we can all agree with that. It's taken seriously, exactly where this money is going, and
whether or not there. . .this. . .some of this for people that, you know, have been gone for
years. I don't know the answers to that, because again I think those are better questions for
Risk Management about what is the reason for this. Off the top of my head, I don't recall
over the past couple of years injuries so serious they would've brought up that kind of cost. I
just don't recall seeing anything of that level of seriousness, but I could be mistaken.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Director. And a follow up in regards to safety -CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --question. So in this area, each section, whether it's fiscal and
administration section, engineering, planning, you have two sub-object codes. One is for
medical and safety supplies, and then there's another one for safety supplies. I just wanted to
distinguish medical and safety versus just the safety, and those rows. Maybe, Mr. Baz, so for
example. . .and they're not big amounts, I'm just with the whole safety supply, I guess that's
what I'm questioning. 19-14, object 6034, then four lines down, 6051 for example. 'Cause
safety supplies are the common verbiage in both lines, so I just wanted to know if they're one
and the same or how are they different?
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. In the Directors Office, the 953000 safety supplies is we have a safety
officer, and that's where she buys a lot of the equipment for all the divisions of the Water
Department. We also have another category in his that also addresses that for safety supplies
also. In the other divisions, like for instance, the Fiscal Division, that's just a small amount.
We have to have safety equipment for our meter readers or our office staff, but the main, the
amount that's in the Directors Office is what our, the budget for the safety officer what she
spends for the Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama. Oh, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's okay. Go ahead.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello was first.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, please.
CHAIR WHITE: No, my bad. Ms. Crivello, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. Yeah, on Details, Page 19-12, item or 6014,
your stores inventory expense. So it's obvious that we need to have parts and supplies in
inventory if I look at this, and there's a $30,000 increase. Is that the average increase you
have of breaks and for your anticipation of number of breaks with your lines?
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. The inventory stores is for the whole Department, it's for Molokai, Hana,
everywhere. We have a warehouse that supplies stores in whatever parts that are needed -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MS. PERDIDO: --like you said for breaks and stuff Our infrastructure is getting aging, you know,
is aging. We have a lot more breaks.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MS. PERDIDO: So we need to have that amount available for us to purchase things that we need for
everyday use as well as emergencies. And it's just we have been very close to the amount in
the past, so we budgeted at little bit additional so we could cover anything that comes up.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So this is like an average, if you take your yearly span of
expenses, would be about that much. That's, I guess that's what I'm asking.
MS. PERDIDO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's what you're saying.
MS. PERDIDO: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. If we can move on to Details 19-14, item 6244. We had
a, we have a flat computer software at $12,000. So what did you expend in Fiscal '14 and
what's expected for Fiscal '15?
MS. PERDIDO: So you're saying 953083, 6244, for the $1,500?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, Page 19-14, yes.
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. This is for any type of software that we need to purchase, especially if we
have to replace computers for our division. So we need to have funds to be able to purchase
the programs to go on to those computers, and it's. . .I'm not sure what we are at actual to
date but.. .
MR. BAZ: I have, Ms. Crivello, the year-to-date expenditure for that computer software in 953083
is, that was the $12,000 budget, $6,500 has been expended year-to-date. They have $2,300
in current encumbrances and about a $4,700 balance. Am I reading the right line? Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Yeah, that one was a $12,000 budget.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So that's. . .and then we expect to expend that average amount
of 12,000 for Fiscal '15 then?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It says 1,500. Where do you see 12,000?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry. Which.. .
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I'm a little confused too.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, where. . .it's $1,500.
MR. BAZ: I'm looking at a very small screen with very small numbers on it, with no lines, so if I
pulled the wrong line.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no, you're at the right one. I'm at the wrong one.
MR. BAZ: 953083.. .
CHAIR WHITE: So you're asking for office supplies, 6037, down below?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Just a minute.
MS YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair? I think she's referring to 19-15, 953109.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, yeah, 6244.
CHAIR WHITE: 6244.
MS. YOSHIMURA: 6244.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: 6244, yeah, and Mr. Baz just explained it.
MR. BAZ: Right. So 953109, yes, that is the correct numbers for that index code.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So we expend at 12,000 and we expecting to spend another
12,000 for additional software, computer software?
MR. TAYLOR: Every time computers are replaced or when some software comes up that we need
to upgrade those come. . .even the software that's run on the IT servers, there's licensing
fees, and being an enterprise fund, you know, we pay for that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So with the ITS, do they service the Water Department?
MR. TAYLOR: The IT service services us. From a personnel standpoint, we buy the things that
they put under their contracts, but the money for all these things come from our accounts, not
from theirs.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So the 165,000 for computer services.. .
MR. TAYLOR: Actually, that 165,000 for computer services, that item is what we pay the Honolulu
Board of Water Supply to process our bills.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. So it's not. . .it just says computer services so.
Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, so that's where it is, but it. . .that does not go to County IT.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. Okay. It also says on Page 19-16, that you rent
152,000, Fiscal Year '14, 6235.

MR. TAYLOR: The Planning Water Resources Division, Ms. Pogue's Division, is housed in One
Main Plaza.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: So that's the rental for that suite.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Didn't know that, okay. And I note
also that you're purchasing a 4x4 vehicle for 55,000, and it's a multipurpose vehicle. Is this
a new vehicle or is it replacing a vehicle?
MR. TAYLOR: All of the vehicles in our budget this year are all replacement vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: There's no new. . .we have no expansion vehicles in budget this year.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: And what is a multipurpose vehicle?
MR. TAYLOR: It means it's four wheel drive, SUV.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I. . .oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: It's not an ATV or some fancy ATV or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, the Police SUV is 41,000, yeah, I think.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Other questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm trying to understand. . .well, we got the right, Director.
Some. . .there's a reason why you folks deleting all this authorized Fiscal Year '14, things
and you asking for us again, basically the same thing in this upcoming budget? I'm just
trying to understand. . .it occurred that you're asking to.. .
MR. TAYLOR: Are you referencing.. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Deletion and then you're asking us to put back.
MR. BAZ: You're referencing the proposed budget document?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm looking at 670, it's delete equipment approved, 12,000, delete
equipment approved, 43,000, delete equipment for 30,000.
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MR. BAZ: Right. Member Hokama and Members, the equipment is always considered an
expansion item, whether it's replacement or not, they need to justify as an expansion any
equipment replacement. So what our office does is goes through and deletes the prior year
equipment authorization and we put in new, the new equipment authorization whatever's
been proposed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So bottom line is all these things that we're. . .shows deletion it was
actually secured?
MR. BAZ: It was budgeted for 2014. I wouldn't know the exact. . .whether or not they were
actually procured or not. Department should know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Perdido? Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Hopefully it was all procured or will be procured within the Fiscal Year. That's the
intention of it, but I think what Mr. Baz is saying is that even it wasn't that money would
lapse. But even if it wasn't purchased, it sort of a. . .the equipment is a one-time
appropriation that the next year, everything that was a one-time appropriation will show as a
deletion and the new stuff shows as an addition, whether we spent the money or not it's
gonna show up this way in the program budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I just need to know whether or not you folks secured the request,
because if you've already got the. . .if you already in the process of getting those two
vehicles from the '14 budget, you know, then I'm gonna look at your two new vehicles, you
asking me for this coming year, very different, yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: Well, we are usually pretty good about getting equipment that's in the budget, and I
can tell you that every one of our vehicles in FY '14 and in this FY '15 proposed budget has
passed the scrutiny of the County's vehicle usage policy as far as needs for new vehicles.
These vehicles all have very high mileage between 120 and 180 thousand mile kind of
mileage, and they're vehicles that are mostly four wheel drive, off road, they take a lot of
punishment. We, just like with the rest of our infrastructure, look at vehicles from a
replacement just before the end of the useful life standpoint. So I think that Chair White has
already asked us for a list of all the replacement vehicles with mileage and things like that,
something that's being put together, so we're more than happy to answer those questions, but
again they're all replacements, part of a programmed replacement and these are all very high
mileage vehicles that we're replacing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Director Baz, any of these will be part of the fleet management
concept we were informed about that's moving forward?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'm not. . .I believe they wouldn't be, especially the vehicles that Department
of Water Supply is purchasing, requesting for Fiscal Year '15 are more specialized vehicles
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that are gonna be out there, you know, four wheel drives that wouldn't necessarily be a part
of a fleet maintenance.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Those vehicles are being identified now and should be put into the fleet within the next
few months.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding the computer request, are you knowledgeable if your
Department is operating anything that's outdated like the XP programs?
MR. TAYLOR: We work with IT services. I mean, I know we do have some older systems, but
those upgrades are part of what IT identifies as computer replacements. Again we pay for
ours and they end up in our budget, but managing that is basically what the IT group does for
US.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So within your own Department, you couldn't tell the Committee this
afternoon whether you had 50 percent, which means 50 computers in our Department that
has outdated program like XP?
MR. TAYLOR: No, I think IT services, manages that and would probably have those records for us,
but we. . .I don't know that anyone in our Department keeps that information.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Now, you know your Department, because of its role in the County, and
I consider it a vulnerable site of attack it disturbs me that we don't have a better grip on our
situation of what we're dealing with. You know, 'cause if your Department has what I would
call un-outdated, nonsupported computer programs like XP, it's not supported by the
manufacture anymore, then I get one issue, 'cause for me it's now an issue of security for the
County.
MR. TAYLOR: I can tell you that when you're talking about XP, you're talking about PC's.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. TAYLOR: The SCADA system is not a primarily a PC driven system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand that, Director, but the level of sophistication of penetration
and attack, they even going through the smartphones, they not necessarily going through
your laptop or your computer on your desk anymore. So, for me, anything that is remotely so
called smart equipment is a potential transmission site of cyber-attack. That's why I'm
asking you guys these questions because this County can't afford a major attack that's gonna
cost us millions to recover.
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MR. TAYLOR: And I would just recommend that, you know, for these kind of questions that
Mr. Verkerke and his staff are probably best to talk about how that kind of issue on PCs
could or could not break through the firewalls that they maintain. Because we don't operate
and maintain that, I'm just not knowledgeable at all in that area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe that's something we all gotta work together, 'cause I think all of
us needs to be up on this issue. Thank you, Director. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you. And I thank you, Mr. Hokama, for bringing
that subject matter up. I think that's very, very important. The last thing I'll ask, you know,
talking about the SCADA program. You know, through the years, we've had at points a lot
of what I call failures, you know, that come in groups. Have we been able to correct that
problem? 'Cause at one time I know that was becoming a real issue within a certain area, a
lot of the transmission from the water meter transformers were going out rather quickly. So,
you know, and that hasn't come up the last year or two, but I remember that was one major,
major concern at one time, and we had changed companies. So has the new company been
much more effective that the old company we used to have?
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. To clarify, I want to separate two things. I think what Member Victorino is
talking about is that transmitters on the customer meters.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Exactly.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. Those are completely independent from the SCADA system. The SCADA
system runs our infrastructure. So what you're talking about is transmitters on the meters
that our meter readers drive by and pick up those signals and get customer readings, is that
correct?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's part of it and then the transfer over, yeah, okay, go
ahead.
MR. TAYLOR: So as far as the meter reading and that equipment, those people work for
Ms. Perdido. I think she's very well aware, so I'll let her answer that. But again it just, that
was just different than the SCADA system, which is, operates our internal.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: System structure.
MS. PERDIDO: Currently, we. . .all our transponders on the. . .we've been having. . .they're
starting to get outdated as the Director mentioned earlier, and we will be looking at a
program to slowly start changing out all the meters and then also the transponders eventually.
There's all kinds of new items that we're looking at for possibly the future, but with right
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now, with everything that we're having to do by reading monthly, you know, trying to get
everything read, we are able to do that with the equipment that we do have.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Very good. And, Mr. Taylor, one more question, and
this is along the lines of Mr. Hokama's questioning but yet it's a little bit different. You're
well aware of and you've seen on the news what is happening in Oahu with break-ins into
their sheds, watershed data systems for copper theft and whatever. And, you know, there's a
lot of them that lay around this community, especially Central Maui that are not that difficult
if somebody really wants to get in and cause some problems. Have you looked upon a little
more tightening of security considering what has happened in Oahu recently, especially up in
Kalihi and other areas? 'Cause I look around and what happened in Kalihi, I can see
happening right up here at Iao, somebody wouldn't take much to get in there and cause some
problems. So have you guys looked at any increase in security based upon what's happening
in Oahu?
MR. TAYLOR: We've looked at increase in security based on what happens here. We've had a
number of break-ins and thefts at our own facilities over the past couple of years. We take it
very seriously, we are taking some measures, we're always trying to take more measures, but
we're absolutely aware of it and I think nobody takes that more seriously than the baseyard
supervisors, who are responsible for those facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you again, you know, we don't get the TV
coverage as Oahu does, but, you know, we're very susceptible and I hate to see like only
142 clients, you know, Oahu went down when Kalihi went out, but we have systems that
would shut down literally thousands of our clients, wouldn't that be true, Mr. Taylor, if
someone was to get into that system? Would they? Yes or no?
MR. TAYLOR: Security of facilities like this is always important. And I think, you know, getting
any details of what we have and what people might do, I don't feel comfortable -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. I'm not asking.. .
MR. TAYLOR: --talking about any of those details, but of course it's a huge concern of our whole
industry -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: --is to protect both our stuff from being stolen and people for messing with our
equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you, Mr. Taylor. I know cyber and as well as
local facilities can happen.
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CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I think we need to stay away from discussions about any kind of
vulnerabilities. So let's move on with the financial and review. On Page 19-12, in two
previous years, there was an expense of 7,000 and 5,000 for Board costs and then it's up
25,000, up to 25,000 for this year and 25,000 for next year. How are we doing on that line
item, Mr. Baz or Director?
MR. TAYLOR: While Mr. Baz is looking up the number, I can tell you what's driving the cost, and
it's when we do appeals, which can lead to court action, we have to hire a court reporter.
And that is the uncontrollable cost that we have. We. . .because of some of the issues going
on operationally, whether it's agriculture or water meters and us tightening up the rules on
those, meters, things, meters that people are saying, look, I deserve a meter and I don't want
to pay the higher rate, these kind of things, appeals seem to be increasing and they're getting
more complex. So when we're in the appeals during the Board, we go to verbatim minutes.
We do not do verbatim minutes, we just do. . .we just have our Board secretary do summary
minutes during the regular Board meeting when there's advice and things. But as soon as the
appeals part starts, we go to verbatim minutes and we hire a court reporter. So that is the cost
that is we're not able to control.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the current year-to-date expenditures, up to March 30, for Board costs is
$5,133.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Five thousand what?
MR. BAZ: One hundred and thirty-three.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: I would just add to that the, I think the number of appeals pending is much greater
than the number of appeals that have been heard so far. And the number of people claiming
they're going to appeal, I think is probably going to be increasing with the issuance of meters
Upcountry and the issues with agricultural water meters, these kind of things. We are
expecting that the Board will be busier than in the past, dealing with some Director's
decisions that they're not happy with.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick, on the issue you brought up. Does the Department have
a appeals fee, hearing fee for the Board?
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MR. TAYLOR: We do and I believe it's $300. It's much, much, much less than it costs to process
an appeal.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand. I just was wondering what was the amount of the
appeals fee. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This may or may not be the right place, but
since we're talking about the Board and whatnot and appeals, you know, we were talking
about potentially a fund for people to chart, we were talking about charging the proper cost
for water what he's been asking for, and then having a fund for people who want to appeal or
get some sort of assistance, maybe that might be a place to do it and we can do our fund in
that way. Or should that be done through a different department if we go that route?
CHAIR WHITE: I'll have to leave that to the Director. I'm not sure where that would need to be
housed, because it basically would require some sort of a financial analysis that would
possibly more likely be done in -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which it sounds like they do at the Board.. .
CHAIR WHITE: --each.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I mean, these appeals.
CHAIR WHITE: No, but it's more of a personal financial evaluation to qualify, if we're gonna give
people the ability to access funds to offset their meter fees.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair? And I gotta remind everyone that despite
that adjudication power, the rest of the Board of Water Supply is still advisory only.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so, you would be hard pressed to let an advisory group be
able to do financial decisions based upon, you know, replenishment of money or whatever. I
still think it has to fall within the Department itself, but anyhow, that's another subject, but I.
you know, thank you for that clarification, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Director, in your response to Ms. Crivello's question regarding the meters,
the additional funding to replace meters and transponders on Molokai, you mentioned that
this is just an ongoing program, but this is an expansion request, not a continuation request.
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So can you explain the degree to which this has been an ongoing program? 'Cause it looks
like in 2012, there's only $58,000 expenditure and this year you're requesting 450,000.
MR. TAYLOR: 2013 had a 200,000 expenditure and I'll turn it over to Ms. Perdido to talk about the
history of how old these meters are and her predictions basically over the next, you know,
several years of what to expect with meter replacements.
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. On Molokai, we have already changed out about 300, I think, transponders,
and we will be having to change out the additional, say 1,300, and that's why we're coming
to the Council to get additional funding to change these out. We will be looking at, over the
next few years, by phases changing out other meters and transponders as we needed. I think,
it was like 1996 about is when we had to the big meter replacement project and then we had
the transponder project was like in 2000. . .2002, if my memory's correct. And when we first
got, we were one of the first to get the radio read meters and at the time I think the
transponders life was like really small, like maybe five to seven years, and now of course the
transponders since we replaced in them in like 2002, then they were like 10 maybe 15 at the
most. So now, we're. . .there's all kinds of new technology out there. We're looking at, for
now, changing out Molokai because that was our very initial site when we did the radio read
meters. We changed the whole island, that was the first one. Now with transponders that we
currently have, they're great. We can even go get data off of the transponders that tells us
what the consumption of consumers has been using. For instance, as Mr. Victorino knows
we always get complaints about, oh, I never used this water, and this has helped us
tremendously saying, yes, you did, this is how you used it and give them a graph of their use.
So that's what we're hoping to get. Molokai does not have that ability right now because
they are the first group that we did change out, and so we are working on coming up with a
program for the next few years, three to probably five years on all the change-outs that we'll
need for our meters.
CHAIR WHITE: So how many. . .what are the transponders cost? Why did we come up with the
additional 250 to get to the 450?
MS. PERDIDO: Well, we. . .this was when I had our purchasing staff figure out that what we will
need to complete. We still have some in stock that we have to keep in stock so that we
change out meters or transponders on that have failed, so we need to always keep some of
that in stock also. So we also then will need approximately 250,000 to change out the rest of
the transponders on Molokai.
CHAIR WHITE: No, my question is how many transponders do you have system wide and what is
the cost per transponder?
MS. PERDIDO: I don't have the exact. . .I think it's about 120 bucks per transponder I want to say.
Meters may be 50. I'll have to look, get the exact numbers for you.
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CHAIR WHITE: And are you replacing both of them at the same time, everywhere you replace a
transponder, you're replacing the meter?
MS PERDIDO: Not necessarily. If the meters are tested out and still working fine, we do not
change the meters out, but where they do fail, where the meters do fail and we change `em
both out.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah?
MR. BAZ: Expenditures year-to-date for water meter inventory are 265,607. They have $66,000 in
encumbrances, so the balance available is a negative $83,699. They've overspent their
budget by $84,000 almost.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So that means they've got pockets somewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Jumping back to. . .can I go back to Details, Page
19-12?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And because after talking about that workman's compensation
figure, two lines below, 6313, claims, settlements, and judgments. That line item, what
exactly is that for? Is this the appeals you were just talking about or what?
MS. PERDIDO: No, these claims could be any claims that are against the Department. I'm not
sure. I can't even think of something. Say there's a hole caused by a break in the concrete
from a water leak and a car falls on it or any kind of claims that could come against the
Department. So those are not the claims that they, the Director was talking about. These are
other claims that could be claimed against the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So they're not workman's compensation claims and they're not
under our self-insurance fund that we deal with via Mr. Hokama's committee, Policy and
Intergovernmental Affairs?
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MS. PERDIDO: No, these are small claims that usually are turned in. They go through the County
Clerk's Office, through Corp. Counsel and through our claims aims, I think, under 7,500
usually.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Okay.
MS. PERDIDO: So the small claims that come through.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So they don't come through this body for approval?
MS. PERDIDO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Okay.
MS. PERDIDO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: But they are dealt with by Corporation Counsel and they tell us, you know, you
have to pay this or Risk Management.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Yeah, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? Mr. Taylor or Mr. Baz, can you explain the, what is
covered by the contractual services under, on Page 19-13, for the line item 6112, about a
third of the way down the page in the amount of 75,388? You're requesting the same amount
as last year.
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, this is within our Fiscal Division. It's maintenance of the copier, but
especially it's the armored car service to pick up the cash and the Badger meters.
CHAIR WHITE: And the what?
MR. TAYLOR: The water meter service. Ms. Perdido can explain further about what exactly that
is.
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. Contractual services, we also covered like for the Badger meters, we have
equipment that is.. .
MR. TAYLOR: The Badger is the name of the.. .
MS PERDIDO: Oh, I'm sorry. Yeah, excuse me, Badger meters the name of our meters that we use
and we do have equipment that is used that we have warranty, or, not warranty, but we have
them insured so that we can send 'em back for repairs. We also have, we pay for the IFAS
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part of the stores, because Water Department is the only one in the County who has a stores
portion of the IFAS software. Postage, the postage rental for a postage machine, copier
machine, rental, and he said armored car, and also we have the First Hawaiian lockbox. We
do have that where payments go directly to Honolulu and are then transmitted to HBWS,
Honolulu Board of Water.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. And Mr. Baz, could you just take a look at what that.. .
MR. BAZ: Year-to-date expenditures are $39,054. They have a balance available of around 36,000
or 48.2 percent.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. And the same thing for professional services and on line,
6132.
MR. TAYLOR: That $40,000 is for our share of the audit.
CHAIR WHITE: And was that entire amount spent?
MR. BAZ: Year-to-date expenditure's $32,438, so about 3/4 of it.
CHAIR WHITE: And then, what have you done differently in registration and training with the
increase of 6,000 or an increase of $4,000 from the 2000, the year before on the last, of the
second to last line on Page 19-13.
MR. TAYLOR: It's the. . .the budget amount is the same, is what the Budget Director is telling me.
I lost at where that is.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry. It's registration and training, line 6230 on the bottom of Page 1.. .
MR. TAYLOR: What you're saying is what's happened since 2012 or 2013, is that what you're
asking? 'Cause it's the same this year as it was in 2014.
MS. PERDIDO: One of the reasons the amount that we have spent has gone down a bit is we were
really bombarded with that Honolulu Board of Water Supply and we were not able to send
people to, you know, training or conferences or anything because of the amount of workload
we were under.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. That makes sense. Okay. Members, other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And that was a wonderful, the Hawaii Water
Works Association Conference that we had in Wailea. That came out of this budget
somewhere, the whole, we, the County provide that conference?
MR. TAYLOR: The only thing that came out of this budget was our registration fees for our people.
Hawaii Water Works Association is a nonprofit of which we are members, so we, when we
send our people, we had to pay registration fees, but that is not something the County of
Maui hosted. That is something the Hawaii Water Association hosted this year.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Okay. Well, you seemed to be the star of the show there,
Director Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Oh, I'm the president this year. It rotates to one. . .to each of the four county water
directors, and whoever is the president hosted that year, but it is something that, you know,
next, this coming year it will be on Kauai and the water director on Kauai will be the host of
it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Good. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, also on that this program area, I noticed, you know, we had
that First Hawaiian Bank and post office arrangement for, I guess, bill payments. So how
often do you folks audit that procedure and the, I would say, the certainty of how the deposits
is functioning, timeliness of the deposits, and access to that cash once deposited. I mean, is
this done annually or we haven't done, we don't do it?
MS. PERDIDO: The lockbox is. . .the deposit, well, you mail in your check, they receive it in
Honolulu, they pick up from the post office box, take it over to, you know, First Hawaiian
picks it up, takes it over, they process it, and deposit it like immediately, I mean, right away,
they're done daily the deposits. Then after that the, they process daily also a file that goes
over to Honolulu Board of Water Supply and then all the backup from that is mailed directly
to us. So we have all the backup, you know, we go through it, anything that is rejected, then
we have to process manually either send it back to customers or maybe they didn't have a
stub we have to add a stub.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is Board of Water Supply the rejection coming from?
MS. PERDIDO: No, no. It's coming from First Hawaiian Bank.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: From the bank?
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MS. PERDIDO: Yeah. So Board of Water Supply only receives the file, so, you know, with all the
payments and then it's at that point, Board of Water Supply receives a file and applies it to
the customer overnight.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. PERDIDO: So the next day it should be posted to the accounts and the money should be
deposited into the first hour the County's First Hawaiian Bank. So all the stubs come back to
us and at that point we look through any problems, we check it out, and then process, you
know, whatever if there's rejects from First Hawaiian Bank.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this, I'm assuming we have a contract with First Hawaiian?
MS. PERDIDO: Yes, we do.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this a, what, is this a termed contract or is this like one just keep
extended or you guys just keep extending the agreement?
MS. PERDIDO: Well, we've only been doing this like a few years now, and I think the County also,
if I'm not mistaken, one of the other departments also use it, First Hawaiian Bank. We
looked at First Hawaiian and Bank of Hawaii and selected First Hawaiian based on their
operations. It was very good and that we've been very happy with them. They process a lot
of stuff for us, but we will be looking at renewing that again in July or.. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what. . .is this a agreement based on, I mean, are we paying fees on
per deposit or what is the deal with the bank?
MS. PERDIDO: Yeah, it's per transaction.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And they also keep the deposit and earn interest off us?
MS. PERDIDO: No, they put the. . .well, they put the deposit into our account -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. PERDIDO: --our First Hawaiian -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. PERDIDO: --you know, the County's First Hawaiian account.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do we put money in the bank for a deposit for short-term,
Mr. Baz?
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MR. BAZ: I'd have to verify that with the Department of Finance if that has a sweep account, but
I'm pretty sure that a majority of our bank accounts are sweep accounts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And if possible, what kind are fees are we paying? 'Cause I would like
you to negotiate a better deal for us.
MR. BAZ: I do know that the bank fees at First Hawaiian are less than the bank fees of Bank of
Hawaii.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But, you know, if you're gonna put money in for, you mean for one
week, millions, I mean, what they can earn off our cash is something to be considered.
MR. BAZ: Yes, I understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just something manini but interesting. On Page 19-14 and 19-15,
there's a note on 6022, inflationary adjustment based on Budget Director's analysis, and they
show a decrease. I think I like the Budget Director's take on inflation. If we can go this
way, Sandy, we're in good shape. I think it's a deflation.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Chair. The. . .we apply it fairly equally, you know, so they. . .if it's a
decrease based on actuals, then it's a decrease.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Terrific. Well, we thank the Director for not using a whole lot of gas
and oil and diesel and whatever, thank you.
MR. BAZ: I did get a lot of flak from the departments when I implemented this initially. They
didn't like us going it based on actuals, but I think they've gotten used to it now and they're
relatively accepting of that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. Good for you. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: I bet they appreciate the fact that you didn't apply it to other lines. And I say that
only half-jokingly, because if you go back to 2012 and 2013, 2012, we had an expense, that
the budget request for this next year is 3.2, roughly $3.2 million, and in 2012, it was about
2.5 million and in 2013 it was 2.1. So from 2013, just two years ago, we're looking at
increases of about a million dollars or about 49 percent, so, you know, when we go through
these budgets, that's why I'm encouraging you all to ask really hard questions because a
million dollar increase in one area is not manini and so all these expenses drive rates. So any
further questions on. . .I've got some questions, but I'll ask Mr. Baz at our next break. Well,
I guess one of the ones that kind of jumps out at me is the Conservation Program, whether
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we've spent down on that money or. . .and same thing on the rentals. And what is the rental
cover, Mr. Director?
MR. TAYLOR: The rental is that $152,000 is rent and common maintenance of the Water
Resources and Planning Divisions offices at One Main Plaza.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the Conservation Program current year-to-date expenditures are $62,972.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And, Director, the. . .is this rent for the same amount of space over these
past three years?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, it is.
CHAIR WHITE: So.. .
MR. TAYLOR: Oh, no, I'm sorry, I'm sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: I was.. .
MR. TAYLOR: No, it's about two years in that location. It's about, it's just about two years ago
that they moved from the other building, which was down by old Hokama's, by the Ba-Le
Restaurant.
CHAIR WHITE: And are they occupying roughly the same amount of space?
MR. TAYLOR: I think it's a little bit less space, but I would call it more usable space.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I hope you're getting some real good efficiencies 'cause we're paying
50 percent more than we were two years ago.
MR. TAYLOR: I believe we were about to go into a rent negotiation with Hokama's and they
wanted a lot more. I don't remember the details, yeah, the Deputy's giving me thumbs up, he
negotiated that. We were looking at having to pay a lot more to stay, so it wasn't what we
were paying, it's what they wanted us to stay. And this was definitely less than what they
wanted us to stay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, any questions on the equipment list? We've discussed the
multipurpose vehicle. Any other items? Mr. Couch? Oh, you usually indicate that you want
to say something by moving your microphone.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, you're getting ready to go to the next page.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next page, your page.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Taylor, we had heard a couple of different
community budget hearings that some of these watershed protection areas were getting cut
and yet we look in the budget here, it doesn't look like there's been any cuts. Can you kind
of explain what they were talking about there?
MR. TAYLOR: I will and I'll invite Ms. Pogue down to get into detail, but let me just give a
framework. When we came in and our Division Head of Planning Water Resources,
Ms. Pogue, was coming down and our Deputy Director, Paul Meyer, who both has extensive
experience managing grants, looked at our grant management program from soup to nuts and
said we need to improve how we're managing these things. And they set up protocols for
both giving out the grants and how to manage those grants, and so this has to led some
differences in how we're managing the grants. We are budgeting as you mentioned just as
much as we had. We want to give this money, but Ms. Pogue can explain why there's a
discrepancy with what we're budgeting and what we've been paying out and what the cause
is for this are.
MS. POGUE All right, Dave, thank you. And thank you all. Just essentially to sort of provide the
context for probably what you heard, Councilman Couch, at these community budget
hearings. Three years ago, more actually two and a half, we sort of created a Grants
Management Program. Now let me say, the County has been giving money to the watershed
grants since about 1992. However, that money, while given by the County or rather, you
know, Department of Water Supply, there was no framework, there was no structure, there
was no reporting, there was no actual application process. And I came here two and a half
years ago and I believe I arrived the week of the Wailuku Main Street Association situation,
and having 28 years in Federal and State grants management, it sort of hit me near and dear
in trying to apply whatever skills I had to create an accountable Grants Management Program
for the watersheds. So essentially what happened in the last two years was we created an
actual program where there is now an application, there is an actual review and evaluation
process, there's even a grants committee of ten members, you know, that look at very hard at
these grants. There is now a reporting process, both a quarterly reporting on programmatic
and financial reporting and also there is actual oversight of these grants, very, very detailed,
time consuming oversight on exactly what's being spent. And probably one of the other
things that we incorporated into this was to. . .there is no doubt that these watersheds. . .and
you guys have gone to watersheds, you've gone to out in the field, you know many of these
folks. The work is absolutely incredible. It is tremendously valuable. However, the
questions that were asked, at least when I came here, was why are we paying what we're
paying, how do you quantify the work these watersheds are doing. That has become very,
very critical. I can tell you in my experience with OMB and with the Feds is it really gets
down to, we hate to say, bean counting, but you've got to be able to quantify, we measure the
performance metrics of what these people do, and we sort of tried to, number one, create a
direct a line of sight with the Department of Water Supply mission, and that is we protect
watersheds because that's where we get our water. We preserve and protect future source
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and recharge. Secondly, and at least three years ago or two and a half years ago, there were
monies that were sitting around that hadn't been spent in three to five, in one situation, six
years. So one of the objectives we had, which was very, very difficult and that was to sort of
tighten the performance period of these watersheds to try to make it down to one year with a
possibility of extending it six months, because as many of you know a lot of the work they do
is very, very weather dependent. And they worked very, very hard with us, very hard with us
to do that. We've had some real bumps on the road, but we feel that after two and a half
years we have a quantifiable grants management program in watershed protection that will
withstand any scrutiny of any auditor that we're very, very proud of and I feel that we have
quantifiable results. I have a report again, this year's annual report for every single
watershed partnership and what they've achieved over the past year. We've more than happy
to share with you, that again will go on the website. Two other things I want to say to this
end is that we try to really get a handle on administrative and overhead, put a cap of 10
percent on all these grants because they were kind of going up where, around 22 to
25 percent. That was very difficult but we did it, because we feel that the water revenue
should be spent out in the field, you know, actually having achievable results. And then the
other thing we've tried to do is to get them to spend their money or invoice in a more timely
fashion and that has been, and that is probably where it was directed, Councilman Couch, is
that last year, we had on, you know, in terms of Sandy's system, our system, very detailed
accounting, they had not spent over 70 percent of the money they were awarded the prior
year. So I'll be honest, the grants committee of which most of those people weren't even
within the Division or Department, you know, outside but experts within the subject area had
some really hard questions about why this money wasn't being spent in a timely fashion. We
worked very hard with the watersheds, not only the watershed but then their third party folks
like RCUH, PCSU. They flew over, we tried to be as responsive as we could. I've pretty
much lost 85 percent of a Planner V, whose been absolutely phenomenal at really attacking
this and giving it incredible scrutiny working with these third party billing who the
watersheds use. And we have, at this point in time, we have a breakdown in terms of the
monies they're spending and that they're spending them in a more timely fashion. So last
year, Councilman Couch, when it came to the grant awards, they hadn't even spent or started
to spend the FY '13 monies, so we did not award the full amount in some cases. And
we're. . .things are better but well the lag, the lag is essentially one of the third party, third
parties that do the billing. What I've understand from the watersheds is they are putting their
invoices together but it's sitting with one of these third parties, but I can tell you we have
been immediately responsive when we receive invoices to turn those around and post those
and get people paid. So it's a third party lag that had been unfortunately not been able to turn
around the invoices in a timely fashion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Is this. . .it's very commendable that you getting your, you
know, getting this under control. The question is, is it affecting the grantees in that that they
now have to do a lot more administrative stuff and that they probably need an administrative
person or. . .I know the Feds or somebody, I think we even kind of helped out with one
clerical position, I believe. Is it a situation where they're gonna have to hire, maybe as a
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group since they are the partnership, somebody to handle all the, you know, the bean
counting as opposed to fixing the watershed?
MS. POGUE: My understanding is when this first began, I'm sure is very much a
boots-on-the-ground effort -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
MS. POGUE: --in terms of the watersheds. I mean, those guys are out there just killing themselves
doing amazing, incredible work and there wasn't much, I mean, they had just to go on scraps
just to get done what they needed to get done. In the years since, even in the two years I've
been here, I've seen them have the ability to. . .through. . .and, you know, we're not the only
funders and that is why our funding is so critical, it's leverage with, you know, U.S. Forest,
Fish and Wildlife, the Forest Reserve, the State, the W, the Water Protection Program grants,
the DLNR money, so with all those, the culmination of those funds, they've been able to hire
clerical or administrative staff, if you will. And quite frankly, I think the level of scrutiny is
increased by all of the funders, they want to make sure -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
MS. POGUE: --that this money is accountable.
MR. TAYLOR: And to follow, this is something I knew that Council and the Departments and the
Administration have struggled with for the past several years for some previously named
nonprofits, where there were some questions of when Council allocates money, hundred
thousand dollars, do we just cut a check four times a year for 25,000 and hope for the best,
are we supposed to monitor them the way we do consultants, you know, what did you do
with this $500, what are we getting out of it, and so that has been a questions that's been
brought up and I think we've seen from recent events that there is an expectation that we
manage grants very similar to how we manage, you know, consultant fees is here's what it's
for, what are you doing, verify you did this. And to answer your question about bean
counters, on both ends, I think there's obviously an increased bean counting on both ends
versus just cut them a check for a quarter of the money four times a year, that took no bean
counters, but there was also really no accountability. So I think this is sort of a new
paradigm of grants management that I think probably the whole County's facing. In the old
days of just again cutting checks and hoping for the best, that is not looked upon kindly
anymore. So I think all of us are tightening up our grant managements procedures and the
recipients are having to adjust to putting more funds into accounting and verification and so
are we.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess, Mr. Chair, that begs the question then if, if they're having
to hire somebody to handle all this stuff, do we need to put that in the budget, because
it's I think at least it's been my intent when we put this money in the budget that they
spend that on watershed management. And then if they have stricter regulations or
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requirements and reporting requirements that are being imposed now then maybe we need to
add a little bit to that so they can still continue to do the same level of watershed protection,
just a observation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They're not required to turn in one annual audit? They're required to do
an annual audit on the.. .
MS. POGUE: They are required. We require in our grant application process and through our
contracting that they have to be able to provide to us documents that within at least every
three years they must with go an audit, yeah. So we have to, you know, we have access to all
those documents.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say we just should do annual audits, just like we gotta do annual
audits for Federal, single audits for any Federal funds. I don't see why not, Chairman. Plus,
it will be the verifying fact that they are still a, if they are, a legitimate nonprofit to receive
such funds, because it's gonna have to pass that audit requirement anyway.
CHAIR WHITE: I believe there are some guidelines as to the size of your organization as deciding
the timeframe within which you need to audit, because to do an audit is a fairly expensive
thing, and so some of the, some of the organizations are not large enough to handle that type
of an expense every year. Mr. Baz, do you recall.. .
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I believe that the requirement is every three years. We do have a
number of organizations that do an annual audit, especially ones that receive Federal monies
so they -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: --do provide us with an annual audit even though the requirement is only every three
years. But just to note, that the audit that they're providing is a very similar to the CAFR that
is produced in the single audit that's produced for the, on behalf of the County. That audit is
an audit of the financial records and tests, internal controls, and those functions. It does not
necessarily audit the program like Ms. Pogue is reviewing in the actual outcomes that are
being provided and whether or not, you know, the money being spend is not just allowable
but that it's actually producing a good outcome. And I think that's where it's more critical
for her staff to be reviewing those things on a regular basis.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would agree with you, Director Baz, that I think what Ms. Pogue does
is critical from the performance side. I like to check both sides. They gotta know how to
deal with the money and they better hit the marks of what they put in the grant application.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. With that, Members, we will take a seven minute break. Be back here at
4 o'clock and . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:52 p.m.
4:03 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene, and please
come to order. . .outside of the room. Members we will go until 4:30 and then take our
dinner break and be back here for the public hearing on water rates, meter fees, et cetera. So
with that we will continue with the discussion about the grants unless everyone has asked
their questions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can I just. . .thank you. Before we move on. . .oh, sorry,
Mr. Couch.
CHAIR WHITE: No, he had his turn. Go ahead, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's others who are waiting.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Before we move on, and can I just
state for the record a formal inquiry in regards to the workman's comp figures that I had
discussed earlier, Chair? So I was hoping to get like a follow up of some sort from Risk
Management in regards to Department of Water Supply's, I guess, cost per claim, why the
figures are exponentially different from other departments, I guess in a sense, if there's a
way.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we'll send a request to Corp. Counsel, since they are the Risk Management.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, yeah, whichever departments and entities. Okay. Thank
you very much, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Sure. Mr. Victorino, did you have a comment or question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I wanted to go back to the watershed discussion. Two
things. . .and I'm very thankful for what they do and how they leverage their money. It's
been very, very helpful. And I'm happy to say the State has finally gotten on board, you
know, to help us in this area. My question to you, Mr. Taylor or to Ms. Pogue, while she
runs up, is, two-fold, number one, the Countywide Watershed Protection, okay, who
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determines where that money goes to? Because it's Countywide, right? You looking like I
lost you.
MS. POGUE: No, I know what you're talking about now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. Okay.
MS. POGUE: Yeah, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. POGUE: Basically, that comes out of my division.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, understood. But where and who gets it, you know, like.. .
MS. POGUE: Oh, who gets it.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. If like West Maui runs in -MS. POGUE: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --East Maui runs in.
MS. POGUE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Who gets it? That was my question -MS. POGUE: At this point.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and how do you determine that?
MS. POGUE: That's a great question. I have a two part answer for you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. POGUE: Number one, ideally what I'd like is to have a set of criteria and have an actual sort of
an evaluation committee. I don't have the staffing. I haven't been able to do it. I have been
running ragged, trying to keep an eye on the grants and deal with the grants and other issues
that have come up before the division. But number two, nobody has requested it and nobody
has asked for the funding. I'm not saying it's not needed, it is. There's two projects I had in
mind and I'm sort of playing phone tag with one in particular of the grantees that spent their
money like that, they were very expeditious and I know that they could use that funding. It
won't meet all their needs but at least a portion of their needs. And it sort of a Capital
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Improvement's Project so I don't know, meaning fencing, so I don't know if this would even
help them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. Right. No, no, and that's good because, you know, the
point was being made that administrative needs by various groups.
MS. POGUE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And so, you know, if somebody had administrative
needs, maybe some of this could help them with that administrative needs, Mr. Couch, you
know, he's not paying attention again but that's okay. The other part is West Maui, Puu
Kukui and the West Maui Watershed, that is the West Maui Mountains on the Lahaina side.
MS. POGUE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I am correct, right? 'Cause we don't have anything on this
side of the mountains right now. We don't do anything as far as preservating, or clean up or
anything -MS. POGUE: Oh, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I take this side, talking Wailuku side.
MS. POGUE: Well, Waihee and Waiehu and Iao, in those areas.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we do have some there?
MS. POGUE: Oh, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just wanted to make sure that I was clear, because I
was told not, then I said, no, no, I think there is.
MS. POGUE: Oh, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so okay. I just want the public to hear that. Okay. I
wanted the public to have that, yeah, information.
MS. POGUE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because I was told by some people that, oh, they only go the
other side, but no, I didn't think that was correct. So you've answered the question. So those
people will watch this and then they'll hear it from you and then we'll be all satisfied.
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MS. POGUE: Actually to that point, we will have on our website probably fairly next week. Those
reports that I have given you all for the last two years, we do have that, and that goes by
watershed partnership and goes into detail.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. POGUE: And so that will be available on the website next week.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think that's. . .and I think that's very important to
have that. And finally I'll say, Ms. Pogue, I very much pleased with the job you've done in
putting these programs, what I call, on the line and getting them actively doing what they
need to do, especially on the financial part, because you're right, for a long time monies
weren't being spent, Mr. Chair, and it was sitting there, and things were getting done. And I
hope this third party issue can be resolved, because I know where the hang up is with the
third parties, and I would hope that they would get more expedient in getting that completed.
But thank you very much, Ms. Pogue, you've done an excellent job and the watershed
management you've done for with the grants program and all that -MS. POGUE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is very, very, very well received in this community.
MS. POGUE: Thank you so much. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Quick question.. .
. (laughter).. .
CHAIR WHITE: Sorry.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You guys ...(inaudible)... he tired hear you guys.
, so the Chair will take his
CHAIR WHITE: Besides they have not been behaving in the last
.
.I
don't
need
a
spend
down
by
specific
watershed area, but can
turn. Ms. Pogue, the. .
you give us an idea whether the funding will be utilized, well to what percent will the
funding likely be utilized in total? Is it gonna be all spent or committed by the end of the
year or.. .
MS. POGUE: We're talking request for FY '15 -CHAIR WHITE: No.
MS. POGUE: --or '14?
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CHAIR WHITE: No, how much is the. . .how much are we likely to have at the end of the year
that's unencumbered and will lapse?
MS. POGUE: At this point for FY '13, all but one partnership is at zero. For FY '14, I can tell you
that only two of the nine partnerships have even begun to spend their money. We have
received invoices from none of the partnership other than two, you know, the pressure's
there, we have quarterly meetings, weekly meetings, e-mails from me constantly pleading
and begging for them to. . .I know they're out there, I know they're working, I know they are,
I know they're doing great work, it's a question of the invoicing and getting the invoicing
into us, 'cause we can only pay when we receive invoices.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So what you're saying is that they have been working off of their previous
funding for most of this Fiscal Year?
MS. POGUE: I'm guessing that, yes, the previous funding from the previous Fiscal Year. I can tell
you that they received notice to proceeds in December the last week and January and two of
the nine have provided invoices in the last four to five months.
CHAIR WHITE: Yikes. And how many of them use the third party, that you're having some
challenges with?
MS. POGUE: It's the same third party, quite frankly -CHAIR WHITE: No, I know.
MS. POGUE: --Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: But they all use the same one?
MS. POGUE: No, no. Most of them have left and they now use RCUH, which have. . .they've been
very, very responsive in working with us. The Nature Conservancy is such a large national,
global organization that they quite frankly have their own wherewithal, they can do it all in
house, they have that capability. And then there's Tri-Isle.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So what is the lag time that you're estimating with, the one that's a
problem? Which I'm.. .
MS. POGUE: Being factual, I can tell you that with one partnership in particular that we haven't
received an invoice since May of last year.
CHAIR WHITE: From any of the partnerships?
MS. POGUE: No, from this one partnership who uses that third party.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Who is that?
MS. POGUE: Tri-Isle.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Who is the partnership?
MS. POGUE: Leeward Haleakala.
CHAIR WHITE: And do you know whether they've submitted and when the last submittal was?
MS. POGUE: Yes, we did speak to them. We do but like I say, we flag this stuff constantly, 'cause
we're trying to stay on top of it and we were told by them that they submitted to Tri-Isle, the
invoices.
CHAIR WHITE: And when was that submittal made?
MS. POGUE: I was told in December and January.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So are any of the partnerships likely to utilize the entire level of funding?
MS. POGUE: I can tell you that for FY '13, all but this one partnership utilized 100 percent of their
funding.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I'm not talking about '13.
MS. POGUE: So for '14.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm talking about '14.
MS. POGUE: So for '14, I don't know. They promised me that they will and my concern is that
nobody has submitted an invoice and here we are in mid-April for FY '14 funding, but they
are on track, they have proposals, they've got deliverables, they've got timelines, I cannot
answer why, at this point in time, none of the invoices have been submitted to us or their
third party which then gets submitted to us. But I will tell you that we drop everything we do
to get those invoices paid and turned around.
CHAIR WHITE: You know, I appreciate what you've done to pull all this together. It's a great
thing that you're doing. It's just a little concerning that.. .
MS. POGUE: And I want to and I know some of the Council members are concerned and again, this
is great work they're doing, great work. Yes, last year, they weren't given the full award, but
we met individually and this is important with every single one of them to discuss what was
happening and why, 'cause we were concerned about this not, they're not being expedient
expenses and spending down of their grants and we said to them, we're giving you this
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amount, spend it, we will give you more 'cause the Council awarded up to this amount, not a
single one of them came back and asked for more funding.
CHAIR WHITE: When was the notice to proceed given to the various watersheds? Was it all at the
same time or.. .
MS. POGUE: What happens, Chair, is that the grant awards are at, the letters were sent for last year
to all of the watersheds in the third week of August. They received an award letter from us,
and in some cases, they didn't receive the full award they were expecting. So we were told
or we actually asked them in the awards letter, please come meet with us so we can sit down,
talk about what's happening with the grant spending or lack thereof, how can we fix this, and
then because of this award, you may have to change your deliverables and your scope of
work understandably if they're getting less money. We had those meetings into great detail
with every single individual partnership, they were then to come back with their scopes of
work to us and that took several months, and then there was a situation with, you know, the
administration and that took another three months and working through all of this, and at that
point, we were told. . .we asked them to come back because we couldn't give them a notice
to proceed until we received their final scope of work, and so for most of the partnerships,
Chair, they received their notice to proceed the first week of January. Well actually, all of
the partnerships with the exception of two and it was like the day after Christmas, so January
primarily, the first of January.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So it's not unreasonable that they haven't invoiced, if they didn't get the
notice until January. Okay. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. So these guys aren't invoicing you, how are they
paying their people? Where are they getting their money? Is this from the previous -MS. POGUE: I'm sure it's from.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --funds?
MS. POGUE: I guess it's from, I would guess it's from previous years, it also from other funders,
`cause we aren't the sole funder. I asked myself that question. I don't know, I mean, I know
how my checkbook works ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We don't have them knocking down our doors saying where's our
money, so I, I mean, I want to be able to give them exactly what they need, you know, or if
they can use more to do more fencing, et cetera, whatever, is to, the main thing is to protect
the watershed and keep protecting the watershed including invasive species, so I don't know,
I mean, if they're not, if they haven't drown down on Fiscal Year '14 yet, that's kind of
amazing.
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MS. POGUE: Well, we're in a situation where we put the grant application package out last week,
because one of the goals that, at least I have for this division is to tighten the process.
Ideally, we would like to have the committee meet in June, have the awards letters go out
July 1St, and so we can bring this so they have more time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, I mean, it's a, you know, it's a new process and a
learning phase for everybody, so just at least from, I'm sure, my point of view and I'm sure
for the rest of us is that we support this, we have supported this for years, just let's see if we
can tweak it so that they can get their bucks and do the job that we really need them to do. I
don't doubt they're not doing the job.
MS. POGUE: Oh, absolutely, and I can't answer your questions. I mean, I can tell you though that
we have tweaked it on our side and you can always do better, you can always do a better job,
but we really, I don't know how we can be any more responsive. I honestly don't. And as
Pomaikai had mentioned this morning, I mean, they were a new grantee and we sat down
with him and I personally wrote, helped him write his grant because this is new, brand new to
him. And so. . .and all the watersheds thank god have a very good relationship with one
another and they serve as mentors and so forth which is wonderful. But I honestly don't
know, and I'm. . .like for example, we have a grants workshop with all the grantees in April.
I hold that for them so let's say, okay, how can we approve this process, what do you need,
here's what, you know, it's very much back and forth and I'm kind of that the point right
now where I look at these numbers, I don't know why they're not spending their money or
why there are these delays with the third party. I don't know. I know we're doing as much
as we can on our end.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello, followed by Ms. Cochran, followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And so, thank you for explaining your process, but I also would
like to comment, echo Mr. Victorino on your hard work and your diligence in working, I can
say that on behalf of the East Molokai Watershed and overall with the Department. So the
Countywide Watershed Protection, for instance, if a proposal went in for 200,000 and it was
cutback to 100 or 20,000 less, could they go through this Countywide Watershed Protection
to -MS. POGUE: Actually.. .
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --justify their need.
MS. POGUE: No, that's a great question, and my frustration is that I just haven't had, quite frankly,
the staff and the man power to really attack that. Ideally, when we proposed it last year, the
point of it was, for example, if you have somebody, you know, like we've got a lot of third
party people out there like, you know, creating koa wilt-resistant seed, or, you know, the
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possibility. . .like especially I know in Molokai to put in strain gauges, to measure, you
know, the effectiveness of them, re-vegetating the Upland area, and how is that measurably
impacting recharge, those types of things that would benefit, you know, the island or the
island water system as opposed to a select watershed group. That's the original intent of that
program, but in my mind, we really do, and I remember Chair Guzman asked about this last
year. He wanted to see a set of criteria and there should be sort of eligibility criteria like an
outside, somebody who's maybe not a watershed partnership but wants to apply for a funding
that would benefit our water source, you know, in terms of recharge, in terms of
groundwater, you know, something along those lines. And a lot of times that can be, you
know, research projects, that could be installing something like gauges, I mean, there's a
different, there's a whole series of things that can be done. And that really was the spirit and
the intent of that particular program, which I know the need is out there. It's just been very
difficult to try to handle it and deal with it in terms of everything else as well. Like, for
example, wellhead protection and there's a lot of science that goes with that and lot of, you
know, mitigation and a lot of things you can do to that end which still has that same effect of
protecting our future water source. That's an example that may not fit in as a line item on
watershed partnerships but it certainly goes hand in hand with the goal and the spirit of what
they're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And yeah, it was nice to see Pomaikai here
this morning, and because that is a new grant and the reason that I had proposed the Puu
Kukui, to have their own sort of line item, yes, they're part of West Maui, but the West Maui
Watershed partnership when I had asked them more specific question of where they, their
kuleana was at the time it was mainly on this end of the West Maui's, which is the Waikapu,
Waihee, this area, and not so much on the other end where I'm from, the Lahaina, you know,
Napili, Kahana, Kapalua area. And so that was the main intent there, but of course they
partner work together, which is excellent, they collaborate and do wonderful work. And so
being that they are a new entity and I'm happy to hear that you've been working with
Pomaikai and how to fill out the grants and what have you. They are one entity that didn't
have, I mean, they had prior funding from other and not so much us, the County, but from
other places, and but they never got their notice to proceed '61 December like you stated and
then come January, so we're now only four months later in April, so it doesn't really give an
entity such as Pomaikai's group that, I mean, four months, I'm sure they can use the money
but they're not gonna have a huge spend down. I think
MS. POGUE: Oh, he submitted an invoice. He was right on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Well, that's good, but I'm just saying -MS. POGUE: He submitted it.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that if he. . .1 didn't know if he was one of the entities but if he
were to be they, you know, it was only been a few months since they even been brought into
the program. Again, you know, I think, yeah, they're doing a wonderful job and he did come
up and hint towards wanting to get more funding this upcoming year, so we'll all discuss
that, but. . .the Countywide Watershed Protection monies, you were saying that it could not
apply to fencing?
MS. POGUE: Oh, no. I never said that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. I thought I heard something that that money may not
be able to be utilized for fencing -MS. POGUE: Oh, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --projects.
MS. POGUE: No, no. One project in mind, they need so much more money than that, and so a lot
of times if you can only give them a small amount that's not gonna help them in terms of the
monies that they need just to buy the fencing and the materials.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Fencing is big bucks and a lot of work. And then lastly,
you kept mentioning the third party entity, RCUH, who is that?
MS. POGUE: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 'Cause I know Tri-Isle.
MS. POGUE: Tri-Isle. No. RCUH, we've been working with and they've really brought their
whole program around.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: University.. .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, research. . .okay. Got it.
MS. POGUE: Oh, yeah. No, they've been working closely with us.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I didn't know the acronym. Okay. Got it.
MS. POGUE: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And yeah, I think that's it. And thank you for the services and
the explanation, too, because we were getting that concern and it kind of startled me, too, to
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hear that our partnership, watershed protection groups were being cut as so that they were
stating. So it's good to get the clarification there. Thank you.
MS. POGUE: Sure.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I had some questions regarding the Puu Kukui project. But first, I'm
amazed what you've done, Pam, you know, Ms. Pogue. Some of our district meetings,
we've heard the complaints of how other departments have approached grants and contracts,
I must say you 'ye gone way, bend over backwards too, ensure that the grantees, you know -MS. POGUE: That's good.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --get the money and fulfill their requirements for the County, so thank
you.
MS. POGUE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You may need to give other departments classes, too. But regarding Puu
Kukui, I know that. . .my question is because you have the component, Maui Land &
Pineapple, will be responsible for completion of management work, so is this Puu Kukui
under. . .basically the land is under Maui Land's ownership?
MS. POGUE: Oh, okay. So Puu Kukui Watershed Partnership has been around for quite some time,
and it started, I'm sitting here looking at Paul 'cause he's probably the best informed on how
that all came down, but essentially, yes, they are housed physically at Maui Land & Pine
properties on the West Side.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And is the watershed Maui Land & Pine's land also?
MS. POGUE: Yes, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So.. .
MS. POGUE: And they manage, I think it's like 8,000 acres or so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And their water goes into what. . .they are into various private water
systems? I'm just trying to understand because I understand why Lanai doesn't get money
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from Water Department, so I'm trying to figure out how does this now, private land owner,
get Water Department money? 'Cause this is not government land -MS. POGUE: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --it's not Federal land, it's not State land, it's not County land.
MS. POGUE: That's a great question and let me say that, for example, East Maui Watershed
partnership is a perfect example of a group of big private landowners, who basically are
loaning or partners through their land as is West Maui and a lot of these partnerships,
Haleakala is a part of East Maui are private landowners and they're basically supporting
either through funds or use of their lands, or I know some Sumner Erdman, for example, I
mean in terms of practices, he's given like 100 acres to Leeward Haleakala to do plantings in
various ways they're supporting the watershed shed in terms of the work that they do. So
Puu Kukui, I know a lot of what Pomaikai does is they, for example, do everything from
reading the rain gauge to pulling out invasives and he was down to like one person, and with
this funding he was able to hire, I believe he's now, I asked him this morning, he's got eight
staff people, and they do fencing, they do a lot of these same projects.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't question the value of what the watershed is providing for
enhancing our water resources. I'm just here trying to figure out as I always understand why
Lanai doesn't qualify, how does these other private landowners qualify?
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Hokama, those watersheds replenish the aquifer. They have wells in those
aquifers, we have wells in those aquifers on their land, so because all of our wells are in the
aquifer, it directly benefits us because our wells are on their land in those aquifers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's your connection to public purpose?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So my community has a public purpose, still doesn't qualify?
MR. TAYLOR: It's certainly has a public purpose but not to the Department of Water Supply.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Not to the Department, specifically like Maui but nonetheless to the
County.
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, and so for example, watersheds serve a wide variety of purposes. For
example, they can help keep silt and sediment from getting to the ocean, that isn't why we
fund them in our budget and that's not the kind of projects we fund. So we certainly have
nothing against funds from other departments or other sources going to watershed protection
for the purpose of protecting ocean water quality, but we don't fund that, we don't fund those
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types of projects. We fund things that benefit the aquifers where our wells or our water
sources are.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I'm gonna hold you guys to consistency on policy or you guys
gonna get hell with me. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I think, you know, you bring up an interesting point because I think I'd like
to see where the wells are, the County wells because if the watershed is significantly
benefiting a private water system -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then the private is -CHAIR WHITE: --then your point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --selling back to the County.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I got one issue with that.
CHAIR WHITE: Your point is well taken, so if you would be kind enough to give us a map
showing the area controlled by Puu Kukui versus the West Maui Watershed partnership and
the identify the location of the wells.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: East Maui, too.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And I know we had this confusion before and maybe
some Members recall this or not, but the West Maui Watershed is pretty much the Iao
aquifer, the Iao aquifer and everything coming down this way, that's why we added Puu
Kukui because it wasn't, they weren't doing anything in West Maui until they came and said,
hey, you know, you got the West Maui Watershed here but we're not doing anything West
Maui, can we do the Puu Kukui. So there's a little bit of . .the naming is a little off,
everybody when they see West Maui Watershed, it's not really for West Maui, it's Mr.
Victorino's area.
CHAIR WHITE: It's the West Maui Mountains, which have -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which have both sides.
CHAIR WHITE: --a west side and an east side.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
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CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, you know, I hear Mr. Hokama's
coming from and I appreciate the questions in regards to the Puu Kukui Watershed area. As
Ms. Pogue mentioned, it, you know, they've always had an ongoing program, I think for
about 27 years and they never asked for County funding, but as I had asked further who is
West Maui Watershed Partnership and it didn't entail that end of the island and I knew that
Puu Kukui needed more staff, they needed more everything, that is why I proposed that in the
budget and it. . .thank you to everybody that it had gotten through, and they as Ms. Pogue has
mentioned have utilized the money quite easily and efficiently, because I personally have
seen the work they've been doing, they work around where I live. And so, yes, the water is
utilized by private source and also by us, the County, it goes to our treatment facility there,
Mahinahina, and yes, we have wells, yes, private have wells, everybody but it's all for the
community as a whole. So that's where I'm coming from in regards to supporting the efforts
that Puu Kukui program does up in the watershed so.
CHAIR WHITE: I thank you for those comments but I don't think anyone was questioning whether
we should involve Puu Kukui. I took Mr. Hokama's question to be focused on whether we
should involve Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The question I have is very simple. If we go. . .and it's not
this Department, so let me start off by I cannot blame water but OED at one time had
400,000, which Lanai used to get. And last year, this Fiscal Year, we put $100,000 for the
Lanai Watershed, okay, why wasn't it put in here? That's my second question, why
wasn't. . .and OED is, I think, is coming Thursday, right.
CHAIR WHITE: Tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Tomorrow.
CHAIR WHI'L'E: Oh, wait, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thursday, right, Thursday.
CHAIR WHITE: Thursday.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So Mr. Hokama. I will not be here Thursday because I'm
going to Oahu, but I would like you to ask that question because to me, I agree. Why not
give them some money and if it has to be through OED. . .I don't care where it comes from
but protecting their watershed is just as much as anybody else. I do agree it's the only island
that is right now 100 percent privately owned.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that's been the, quote, difference that we've used all
these years. So we'll see but, I mean, it is here in OED, last year, this Fiscal Year 400,000.
why not in this year? I don't know and maybe when they come on Thursday, we can get an
answer for them.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we. . .I believe both you and Mr. Hokama will be on the TAT cap removal
team in Honolulu on Thursday. So we will.. .
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: My recollection when I asked the question when I was developing the budget, proposed
budget and why there was no money in there, they, Lanai, did not request this year's money
and they said that they would not be requesting any money for next year as well. The
company did not want any County money to do the operation.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, and I'm aware and Mr. Baz is correct. That's why I'm gonna
put something with County money in the budget because we need to do the oversight for our
island's community, you know.
CHAIR WHITE: But the question whether the.. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's private land, that's true but they serve a public purpose and they run
a utility, okay, for public purpose. So for me, under the State Constitution and our Charter, I
want some County or public money in there so I can do my appropriate oversight to ensure
that the public's interest is well protected because what you cannot see, you cannot check.
And that's the problem with Lanai, there's no real good transparency regarding water on the
island. The developer is the owner, they control the water, they control the land. Okay.
There needs to be more sunshine on that island and a lot more transparency and that's why I
push for government money to be in certain areas to force that sunshine in and that's the
reason. And again, you know, I don't. . .my question was about how does this private
component fit under all the departments grants.
- 83 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 15. 2014

CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand why. The Department explained well regarding the Lanai
situation and I understand. I just want for an application if it's another private landowner.
then maybe it should be part of OED's funding too and not Water Department's fund, you
know. My thing is let's be consistent in our application of policy.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. With that, Members, I promised that I would let you go at 4:30. If anyone
has a burning question that hasn't been covered feel free to ask it now on the grants,
otherwise we will. . .the plan is to adjourn this meeting and take up Water first thing
tomorrow morning and if we get through Water we'll also do Department of Personnel
Services tomorrow. At this point, they will be on call and then so we'll adjourn this meeting,
get back together at 9 o'clock tomorrow morning to continue with this section of Water and
we will, of course, gather at 6 o' clock back in this room tonight for the water hearing. Any
questions? Okay. With that we're adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 4:36 p.m.
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MIKE WHITE. Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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